
AGENDA 
LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Committee Meetings 
October 29, 2013 

Second Floor - County Administration Building 
212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072 

Telephone - 803-785-8103 -- FAX 803-785-8101 
 
 
If special accommodations are needed to participate in this public meeting, please contact 
the Lexington County Council Office at (803) 785-8103 or dburnett@lex-co.com at least 
two business days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 
 
Times are tentatively scheduled committee meetings that may run behind or ahead of 
schedule; therefore, the times could change by as much as 30 minutes. Also, if time permits, 
Council may elect to enter into Executive Session to discuss contractual, legal, personnel 
matters, etc. 
 
1:00 p.m. - 1:15 p.m. - Economic Development 
(1) Resolution R13-1 - Distribution of Fee in Lieu of Tax Revenue - Councilman Kinard ........................ A 
(2) Meeting of July 23, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ................................................................................ B 
(3) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... C 
(4) Old Business/New Business 
(5) Adjournment 
 
1:15 p.m. - 1:20 p.m. - Planning and Administration 
(1) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... D 
(2) Old Business/New Business 
(3) Adjournment 
 
1:20 p.m. - 1:30 p.m. - Justice 
(1) Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - Sheriff's Department - Col. 

Allan Paavel ....................................................................................................................................... E 
(2) FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Grant Award - Sheriff's 

Department - Col. Allan Paavel .......................................................................................................... F 
(3) State Homeland Security (SHSP) Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - Sheriff's 

Department - Col. Allan Paavel .......................................................................................................... G 
(4) Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - Sheriff's Department - Col. Allan 

Paavel ................................................................................................................................................ H 
(5) Meeting of July 23, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ................................................................................ I 
(6) Meeting of August 27, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................ J 
(7) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... K 
(8) Old Business/New Business 
(9) Adjournment 
 
 

1



1:30 p.m. - 2:15 p.m. - Health and Human Services 
(1) FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - Public Safety/Preparedness - Michael Kalec, 

Emergency Manager........................................................................................................................... L 
(2) Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on 

Behalf of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District to Issue General Obligation Bonds 
in the Principal Amount of Not Exceeding $23,000,000; and Other Matters Relating Thereto ............ M 

(3) Meeting of August 27, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................ N 
(4) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... O 
(5) Old Business/New Business 
(6) Adjournment 
 
2:15 p.m. - 2:55 p.m. - Public Works & Solid Waste Management 
(1) PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - Solid Waste Management - Dave Eger, 

Director .............................................................................................................................................. P 
(2) Meeting of July 23, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ................................................................................ Q 
(3) Meeting of August 27, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................ R 
(4) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... S 
(5) Old Business/New - NewRoad/Corley Mill/Riverchase Monthly Update; Flooding 

Issues/Kinley Creek Criteria; Stormwater Utility Fee; and Pine Glenn Alternate Exit 
(Emergency Access Road Cost; Nursery Road Bridge Update; Permanent Water Quality 
Buffer Requirement Concerns; Dixired Road 

(6) Adjournment 
 
2:55 p.m. - 3:00 p.m. - Airport 
(1) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... T 
(2) Old Business/New Business 
(3) Adjournment 
 
3:00 p.m. - 4:15 p.m. - Committee of the Whole 
(1) Meeting of July 23, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ................................................................................ U 
(2) Meeting of August 27, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ............................................................................ V 
(3) Meeting of September 10, 2013 - Approval of Minutes ...................................................................... W 
(4) Possible Executive Session if Time Permits 
(5) Old Business/New Business 
(6) Adjournment 
 
 

2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Economic Development 
J. Jeffcoat, Chairman 
D. Summers, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
B. Keisler 
T. Cullum 
 

Planning & Administration 
D. Summers, Chairman 
K. Collins, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
B. Matthews 
T. Cullum 

  
Justice 
J. Kinard, Chairman 
J. Jeffcoat, V Chairman 
K. Collins 
B. Keisler 
D. Summers 

Health & Human Services 
B. Matthews, Chairman 
B. Keisler, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
F. Townsend, III 
K. Collins 

  
Public Works & Solid Waste 
Management 
T. Cullum, Chairman 
D. Summers, V Chairman 
B. Keisler 
J. Jeffcoat 
B. Matthews 

Airport 
F. Townsend, III, Chairman 
J. Kinard, V Chairman 
K. Collins 
B. Keisler 
T. Cullum 

 

  
Committee of the Whole 
B. Banning, Sr., Chairman 
J. Jeffcoat, V Chairman 
J. Kinard 
F. Townsend, III 
K. Collins 
D. Summers 
B. Keisler 
B. Matthews 
T. Cullum 
 
 

GOALS 
1. Provide for public services to citizens of Lexington County. 
2. Manage growth to meet the needs of Lexington County. 
3. Provide innovative Financial Management. 

3



 
AGENDA 

LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL 
October 29, 2013 

Second Floor - Dorothy K. Black Council Chambers - County Administration Building 
212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina 29072 

Telephone - 803-785-8103 FAX - 803-785-8101 
 
 
If special accommodations are needed to participate in this public meeting, please contact 
the Lexington County Council Office at (803) 785-8103 or dburnett@lex-co.com at least 
two business days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 
 
 
4:30 P.M. - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
Call to Order/Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Chairman's Report 
 
Administrator's Report 
 
Employee Recognition - Joe Mergo, County Administrator 
 
Presentations 
(1) New Green Business Member - Amanda H. Edwards, Recycling Coordinator .................................... X 
(2) American Red Cross - Palmetto SC Region- Update - Bill Cronin, Executive Director 
(3) Central Midlands Regional Transportation Authority Update  - Robert Schneider, Executive 

Director and General Manager 
(4) Central SC Alliance Update - Mike Briggs, CEO & President 
 
Appointments 
(1) Boards and Commissions ................................................................................................................... Y 
 
November and December 2013 Schedule 
(1) November and December 2013 Schedule ........................................................................................... Z 
 
Bids/Purchases/RFPs 
(1) Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works ............................................................... 1 
(2) Food Service Program for the Lexington County Detention Center - Sheriff's Department ................. 2 
(3) Request for Approval to Utilize the Competitive Sealed Qualifications Process for Analysis 

of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice - Community Development .................................................. 3 
(4) Security Guard Services (Term Contract) - Library............................................................................. 4 
 

4



 
Approval of Minutes 
(1) Meetings of September 10, September 24, and October 8, 2013.......................................................... 5 
 
Committee Reports 
Economic Development, J. Jeffcoat, Chairman 
(1) Resolution R13-1 - Distribution of Fee in Lieu of Tax Revenue.......................................................... A 
 
Justice, J. Kinard, Jr., Chairman 
(1) Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant ...................................................................... E 
(2) FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Grant Award ........................................ F 
(3) State Homeland Security (SHSP) Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award ........................... G 
(4) Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award ........................................................................ H 
 
Health & Human Services, B. Matthews, Chairman 
(1) FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award ....................................................................................... L 
 
Public Works & Solid Waste Management, T. Cullum, Chairman 
(1) PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application ............................................................................ P 
 
Budget Amendment Resolutions 
 
6:00 P.M. - Public Hearings 
(1) Ordinance 13-09 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment 

to Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement by and Between RNDC South Carolina, 
LLC, RNDC South Carolina Re Holdings, LLC and Lexington County, South Carolina 
Whereby the County Will Covenant to Accept Certain Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes 
With Respect to Certain Property and Make Available to RNDC South Carolina, LLC and 
RNDC South Carolina Re Holdings, LLC Other Economic Benefits and Incentives and Such 
Property will be Added to the Joint Park with Calhoun County........................................................... 6 

(2) Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie 
Drive to the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission .................................................... 7 

(3) Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on 
Behalf of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District to Issue General Obligation Bonds 
in the Principal Amount of Not Exceeding $23,000,000; and Other Matters Relating Thereto ............ 8 

 
Ordinances 
(1) Ordinance 13-09 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment 

to Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement by and Between RNDC South Carolina, 
LLC, RNDC South Carolina Re Holdings, LLC and Lexington County, South Carolina 
Whereby the County Will Covenant to Accept Certain Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes 
With Respect to Certain Property and Make Available to RNDC South Carolina, LLC and 
RNDC South Carolina Re Holdings, LLC Other Economic Benefits and Incentives and Such 
Property will be Added to the Joint Park with Calhoun County - 2nd Reading ..................................... 9 

(2) Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie 
Drive to the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission - 3rd and Final Reading ................ 10 

5



(3) Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on 
Behalf of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District to Issue General Obligation Bonds 
in the Principal Amount of Not Exceeding $23,000,000; and Other Matters Relating Thereto 
- 2nd Reading ...................................................................................................................................... 11 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION/LEGAL BRIEFING 
 
MATTERS REQUIRING A VOTE AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

6



 R E S O L U T I O N   R13-1 
 

THE COUNCIL FOR THE COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA, MEETING 
IN GENERAL SESSION THE 29TH DAY OF OCTOBER, TWO THOUSAND AND 
THIRTEEN, ADOPTED THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 WHEREAS, Lexington County Council has, as part of its Strategic Planning process, determined 
that Economic Development is to be a priority in Lexington County; and  
 

WHEREAS, there are a limited number of strategically located, high visibility, high demand sites 
available for development that can provide quick exposure and sale within Lexington County; and  

 
WHEREAS, Lexington County Council has utilized bonding for economic development which are 

to be repaid by the levy of a countywide debt millage; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Lexington County Council to assist all five school districts 

located in Lexington County by providing additional funding and, thereby reduce the need for routine annual 
millage increases. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lexington County Council: 
1. As authorized by Ordinance 12-07, the properties designated as the Batesburg-Leesville 
Joint Industrial Park, including properties hereafter added to the Park, and the Chapin Joint 
Technology Park, including properties hereafter added to the Park, are hereby added to the properties 
set forth in Section (D) (3) of Ordinance 12-07 and the FILOT distribution shall be as set forth 
therein.   
2. Each project will be accounted separately regarding expenses and disbursements. 
3. Expenditures by the County to develop each project must be recovered prior to  
the commencement of the disbursements. 
4. The division of the school district portion of the FILOT payments will be in  
accordance to Ordinance 07-18 adopted  December 11, 2007. 
5. An economic development fund will be established going forward from the date  
of this resolution where five percent of the County ordinary portion of each FILOT payment will be 
set aside for future economic development projects with the goal being to avoid future bonding 
needs.  Disbursements from this account must be approved by a majority of Lexington County 
Council. 
6. The Lexington County Treasurer will disburse the qualifying FILOT payments, after 
verification of the satisfaction of expenses by the Finance Department, within 60 days of receipt of 
said FILOT payments. The Lexington County Finance Department will furnish the Lexington 
County Council, in the first quarter of the calendar year, a 10-year projection of all current projects 
which are in the qualifying Industrial Parks of (1) Saxe Gotha, including the SCANA Gas Training 
Facility, (2) Chapin Technology Park, and (3) Batesburg/Leesville Industrial Park and which are 
subject to the FILOT payments in a project by project format. 
 

 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
William B. Banning, Sr., Chairman Johnny W. Jeffcoat, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
James E. Kinard, Jr.  Frank J. Townsend, III 

 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Kent Collins Debra B. Summers 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Bobby C. Keisler K. Brad Matthews   
 
_________________________________ 
M. Todd Cullum 
 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________ 
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk  

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 1County Council - Resolution R13-1 - Distribution of Fee in Lieu of Tax Revenue  - 10/29/2013
7



**This page intentionally left blank**

8



**This page intentionally left blank**

9



**This page intentionally left blank**

10



Title of Grant: Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE)

Fund: 2425     Department: 151200
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Nandalyn Heaitley, Sheriff's Office Grants Coordinator

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

LE/Advanced Impaired Driver Enf.

December 4, 2012 February 1, 2013

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

LE/Operations
TitleTitle

October 1, 2013 September 30, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Grant Award

Grant Overview:  The ultimate goal of the Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement Unit in Lexington County is to combine 
resources to effect a positive change in the collision, injury, and arrest rate of traffic speed violations.  By consolidating the 
resources and expanding knowledge and skills to perform traffic enforcement, the quality of enforcing the traffic laws will result 
in an effort to reduce severe and fatal traffic collisions.  The expertise and knowledge gained from the specialized training will 
enhance the unit’s capability by using technologically sound equipment and techniques to collect and process evidence for court 
cases for effective discovery, documentation, and judicial prosecution of criminal offenders.

This award covers the costs for two AIDE officers salaries, operating supplies, two vehicles and other capital items.  Their are 
other capital costs related to these officers that the grant will not cover, so the Sheriff's Department is transferring funds to cover 
these additional costs. 

p ( g p , , , )

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:

Capital * Award Amount:

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X   * Match is not required, but being used to purchase items 
        not covered by the grant.

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approva

Last Updated:  10/12/12     By:  AD Finance Appro

Initials

NH

124,086.00$     

% $ Amount

$17,436.00

Date

AD 10/21/2013

AP 10/18/2013

6%

280,910$    
270,547$    

94% $270,547.00

33,520.00$       

10/18/2013

287,983.00$     

130,377.00$     

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):
This grant must be applied for on an annual basis.

The funding for this grant is paid 100% by SCDPS/OHS & there are no requirements at the end of the grant.  Once funding for 
this grant runs out, the Sheriff's Department plans to continue this program through funds received by the Sheriff's Department 
from tax revenue and other grant funds as available.

Grant application was approved at the 1/22/13 Council meeting.

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
11



FY 2013-14 Estimated Revenue

Object Requested Approved Awarded
Code Revenue Account Title 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

*LE - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) 2425:

Revenues:
457000 Federal Grant Income 280,910 280,910 270,547
461000 Investment Interest 0 0 0
801000 Op Trn from General Fund/LE 0 0 17,436

** Total Revenue 280,910 280,910 287,983

***Total Appropriation 280,910 280,910 287,983

FUND BALANCE 
     Beginning of Year 0 0 0

FUND BALANCE - Projected
     End of Year 0 0 0

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Annual Budget 
ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
12



Fund: 2425
Division: Law Enforcement
Organization: 151200 - LE/Operations

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Code   Classification Requested Approved Awarded

Personnel
510100 Salaries & Wages - 2 92,500 92,500 92,500
510199 Special Overtime 6,000 6,000 0
511112 FICA - Employer's Portion 7,536 7,536 7,076
511114 Police Retirement - Employer's Portion 12,648 12,648 11,877
511120 Insurance Fund Contribution - 2 15,600 15,600 15,600
511130 Workers Compensation 3,310 3,310 3,324
515600 Clothing Allowance 1,600 1,600 0

*  Total Personnel 139,194 139,194 130,377

Operating Expenses
521000 Office Supplies 500 500 500
521200 Operating Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,000
521208 Police Supplies 0 0 0
522300 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance - 2 1,000 1,000 1,200
524100 Vehicle Insurance - 2 1,092 1,092 1,092
524201 General Tort Liability Insurance 1,490 1,490 1,490
524202 Surety Bonds 0 0 0
525004 WAN Service Charges - 2 1,200 1,200 1,440
525020 Pagers & Cell Phones - 2 1,200 1,200 1,440
525030 800 MHz Radio Service Changes - 2 1,200 1,200 1,200

Fiscal Year - 2013-14

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT

Annual Budget 

525030 800 MHz Radio Service Changes  2 1,200 1,200 1,200
525041 E-mail Service Charges - 2 162 162 162
525210 Conference, Meeting & Training Expense 2,000 2,000 4,600
525230 Subscription, Dues & Books 0 0 0
525400 Gas, Fuel and Oil 18,000 18,000 19,396
525600 Uniforms & Clothing 0 0 0

* Total Operating 28,844 28,844 33,520

** Total Personnel & Operating 168,038 168,038 163,897

Capital
540000 Small Tools & Minor Equipment 800 800 450
540010 Minor Software 400 400 0
5AE443 (2) Marked Vehicle w/ Accessories 61,178 61,178 61,178
5AE444 (2) 800 MHz Radio w/ Accessories 11,200 11,200 11,200
5AE445 (2) In-car Video Cameras w/ Accessories 9,620 9,620 9,620
5AE446 (2) In-car Radar Units w/ Accessories 4,384 4,384 4,384
5AE447 (2) Digital Cameras w/ Accessories 800 800 800
5AE448 (2) Ruggedized Laptop w/ Mount 13,000 13,000 12,000
5AE449 (2) In-car Thermal Printers w/ Accessories 800 800 800
5AE450 (2) Lidar Units 10,690 10,690 10,690
5AE451 (2) Driver License Barcode Scanners 800
5AE452 (2) Electronic Control Devices w/ Acc. 3,204
5AE453 (2) Personal Protection Kits 1,760
5AE454 (2) Handguns w/ Accessories 1,200
5AE455 (2) MCT/MFR Licensing 6,000

** Total Capital 112,872 112,872 124,086

*** Total Budget Appropriation 280,910 280,910 287,983

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
13



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200)       
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST   
 
 

 SECTION V. – PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
The ultimate goal of the Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement Traffic Unit in Lexington County is to combine 
resources to effect a positive change in the collision, injury, and arrest rate of traffic speed violations.  By consolidating 
the resources and expanding knowledge and skills to perform traffic enforcement, the quality of enforcing the traffic laws 
will result in an effort to reduce severe and fatal traffic collisions.  The expertise and knowledge gained from the 
specialized training will enhance the unit’s capability by using technologically sound equipment and techniques to collect 
and process evidence for court cases for effective discovery, documentation, and judicial prosecution of criminal 
offenders. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
14



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT  
LE/OPERATIONS (151200)                        Page  1 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  
 
 

 
SECTION VI. A. - SUMMARY OF REVENUES 

 
 
 
457000 –FEDERAL GRANT INCOME                                                                                                      $ 270,547 
 
Federal funds are awarded to the agency at 100%. 
 
 
801000 - OPERATING TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND                                                                $ 17,436 
 
This account will be used to cover costs that are not covered by the grant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
15



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT 
LE/ OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1  

 
 

SECTION VI. B. – LISTING OF POSITIONS 
 

Full Time Equivalent 
Positions  General Fund Other Fund Total Grade 

Current Staffing Level: 
 Traffic Lieutenant          1             1           0      1            20 
 Traffic Master Deputies          2             2           0      2            13 
 Traffic Deputies               7             7           0      7            12 

DUI Traffic Deputies           2             0           2      2            12 
  
   
Totals:           12           10           2    12 
 
 

 
Full Time Equivalent 

Positions  General Fund Other Fund Total Grade 
 
Grant Staffing: 

AIDE Traffic Deputies         2            0          2      2            12 
          
   
Totals:           2            0          2                       2 

10/24/2013   Page 6 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
16



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT  
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1 

 
  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SECTION VI. C. – OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 

 
 
521000 - OFFICE SUPPLIES              $ 500 
 
Items to be purchased include, but are not limited to pens, file jackets, folders, DVDs, DVD holders, clip boards, 
chair mats, envelopes, calendars and other general supplies used daily.  
 
 
521200 - OPERATING SUPPLIES          $ 1,000 
 
Items to be purchased include traffic supplies such as video and audio tapes, computer cleaning pads, OSHA kits, 
traffic books, disks, batteries etc. are required for operational purposes for the traffic officers.   
 
 
522300 - VEHICLE REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE        $ 1,200 
 
Vehicle repairs and maintenance is needed for the grant vehicles.   
 
 
524100 - VEHICLE INSURANCE          $ 1,092 
 
Vehicle insurance is required for the grant vehicles.   
 
 
524201 - GENERAL TORT LIABILITY INSURANCE        $ 1,490 
 
General Tort Liability Insurance is required for each person employed by the County.    
 
 
525004 – WAN SERVICE CHARGES          $ 1,440 
 
Air card service will allow the traffic officers to have wireless access to the web GNET and other databases from 
other counties as well as LCSD to obtain immediate information on the person in question.   
 
 
525020 - PAGERS AND CELL PHONES          $ 1,440 
 
Mobile telephones will allow the traffic officers to communicate effectively with each other and to make contact to 
those individuals that are involved in traffic situations. 
 
 
525030 – 800 MHz RADIO SERVICE CHARGES         $ 1,200 
 
The 800 MHz radio fees plus roaming fees is required for the operation of the two 800 MHz radios.   
 
 
525041 – E-MAIL SERVICE CHARGES             $ 162 
 
The email service is required for immediate communication and immediate transfer of documents for investigative 
purposes. 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 7 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
17



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT  
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 2 

 
  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
525210 – CONFERENCE, MEETING AND TRAINING EXPENSE      $ 4,600 
 
The grant requires that each grant funded person attend at least two training seminars per grant year.  The 
registration fees are required to secure attendance to training classes which will be announced in the upcoming year.  
The training will be in state at a time and location that will be announced later.  These training seminars will teach 
the most current technological approaches to DUI, vehicle inspections, laws, and investigations that will allow the 
traffic officers to present cases in court for prosecution purposes. 
 
 
525400 - GAS, FUEL, AND OIL         $ 19,396 
 
The grant reimburses the mileage at the federal rate for the grant-funded personnel to allow them to travel to work 
while performing their duties.  
 
 
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 8 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
18



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1  

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SECTION VI. D. – CAPITAL LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 

 
 
 
540000 – SMALL TOOLS AND MINOR EQUIPMENT           $ 450 
 
The officers need a digital recorder and a rechargeable flashlight to perform their duties.   
 
 
5AE443 – (2) MARKED VEHICLES W/ ACCESSORIES                             $ 61,178 
 
The Speed Enforcement Traffic vehicles to be purchased must meet the standards established by the Office of 
Highway Safety.  Each vehicle will be equipped the same to ensure uniformity and consistency with all traffic stops.  
Emergency lighting and audio is required for the safety of all motoring public during a traffic stop or checkpoints.  
Push bumpers are required on each vehicle to assist a disabled motorist from the highway without damaging the 
vehicle.  Vehicle safety partitions are required for safe transport of prisoners to jail.   
 
 
5AE444 – (2) 800 MHZ RADIO W/ ACCESSORIES      $ 11,200 
 
The 800 MHz Digital Encrypted radios are required for each officer.  The digital encryption allows all law 
enforcement agencies to communicate over a secure network and for the safety of the traffic officers.   
  
 
5AE445 – (2) IN-CAR VIDEO CAMERAS W/ ACCESSORIES       $ 9,620 
 
The use of digital in-car video is paramount for evidentiary purposes, which will assist in successful prosecution of 
each case.  The video medium is regarded as the most effective tool to prosecute traffic cases.   
 
 
5AE446 – (2) IN-CAR RADAR UNITS          $ 4,384 
 
The radar units enable the apprehension of traffic violators.    
 
 
5AE447 – (2) DIGITAL CAMERAS W/ ACCESSORIES           $ 800 
 
Digital cameras are needed to document traffic scenes which will greatly enhance traffic investigations and court 
presentations.  Some of the benefits are: 

 Instantaneous in camera review to confirm the incident was correctly documented. 
 The speed at which images can be used and disseminated. 
 Cost savings over film systems. 
 More images are taken and scenes are documented more thoroughly due to the absence of film. 

 
 
5AE448 – (2) RUGGADIZED LAPTOP W/ ACCESSORIES                  $ 12,000 
 
These computers will be used for recording data in the field.  The laptop will also be used to pull information from 
the in-house system needed for the investigation.   
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 9 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
19



FUND:  2425 – LE/ADVANCED IMPAIRED DRIVER ENFORCEMENT 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 2  

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
5AE449 – (2) IN-CAR THERMAL PRINTERS W/ ACCESSORIES         $ 800 
 
Mobile printers and accessories will be used to print search warrants, photographs and other documents needed to 
process the case at the scene.   
 
 
5AE450 – (2) LIDARS UNITS                                                                                 $ 10,690 
 
The LIDAR units enable the apprehension of traffic violators.  These particular LIDAR units record a digital 
photograph of the violator’s vehicle with the speed, time, date, and location stamped on the picture. This will assist 
in the prosecution of speed cases.  
 
 
5AE451 – (2) DRIVERS LICENSE BARCODE SCANNERS                       $ 800 
 
Each deputy needs these scanners to read the bar codes on the back of the driver’s license.  This reduces data entry 
of data already available and increases the efficiency and accuracy of the data captured.   
 
 
5AE452 – (2) ELECTRONIC CONTROL DEVICES W/ ACCESSORIES     $ 3,204 
 
Electronic Control Devices are becoming an effective way to issue less lethal force when needed to detain 
combative subjects.  One electronic control device with accessories consist of the electronic control device, a duty 
holster, four (4) training cartridges, and four (4) duty cartridges.   
 
 
5AE453 – (2) PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT KITS     $ 1,760 
 
These personal protective equipment kits are used in the event of a hazardous chemical or substance spill.  These 
kits are needed for our road patrol units to keep them OSHA compliant.   
 
 
5AE454 – (2) HANDGUNS W/ ACCESSORIES       $ 1,200 
 
Handguns are required to perform the duties of a law enforcement officer.  
 
 
5AE455 – (2) MCT/MFR LICENSING        $ 6,000 
 
This licensing is required for our field reporting and records management system.   

10/24/2013   Page 10 of 12Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
20



10/24/2013   Page 11 of 12

Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013

21



10/24/2013   Page 12 of 12

Sheriff's Department - Advanced Impaired Driver Enforcement (AIDE) Grant Award - 10/29/2013

22



Title of Grant: FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP)

Fund: 1000      Department: 151300
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application Grant Award X

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Adam DuBose, Grants Manager

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

Reimbursement Block

General Fund

March 28, 2013 May 13, 2013

Title

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

LE/Jail Operations
Title

Grant Overview:  The State Criminal Alien Assistance Program provides assistance for the housing of alien prisoners for at least 
four consecutive days in the Lexington County Detention Center.  

Past awards:  FY 05 - $27,521, FY 06 - $37,494, FY 07 - $38,448,  FY 08 - $34,373, FY 09 - $64,935, FY 10 - $53,164,  
FY 11 - $40,266 & FY 12 - $43,688. 

Twenty-two percent of the award will go to Justice Benefits, Inc. for their researching, calculating and formatting the data that was 
submitted with the application.  The remainder of the award will go toward covering the jail personnel's salaries & wages.

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Personnel
Operating   (22% of the award for JBI) * Application Amount:   

Capital * Award Amount:            

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer:

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approval:

Last Updated:  12/13/06     By:  AD Finance Approval:

N/A
-$                  

%

11,775.00$       

-$                  
11,775.00$       

Initials Date

AD 10/18/2013

53,522$      

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail): The funds received are used to offset the personnel cost of 
correctional officers that are involved with the housing of criminal aliens.

Grant application was approved at the 4/9/13 Council meeting.

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 2Sheriff's Department - FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Grant Award  - 10/29/2013
23



State Criminal Alien Assistance Program  2013-H3170-SC-AP 

   OMB Number: 1121-0243
Expires: 02/29/2004 

SCAAP 
Help 

GMS 
Home 

Log Off 

Grant Number: 2013-AP-BX-0171

Jurisdiction: LEXINGTON COUNTY 

Vendor Number: 576000378

Award Amount: $53,522

Fiscal Year 2013 Payment Acceptance and Electronic Transfer of Funds 

 

The Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) has completed its review of your facility, inmate, and correctional officer data 
related to the State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP). The Bureau of Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
has vetted the inmate records, and an award amount has been calculated. 

In accepting this award, you understand that BJA reserves the right to take appropriate administrative action, 
including intensive monitoring, repayment action, or adjustment to future payments, to resolve data discrepancies, 
errors, or audit findings related to any information reported in your application.  

Applicants are now required to accept awards online within 45 calendar days of award notice, in accordance with 
the Office of Justice Programs (OJP) Financial Guide, Part II, Chapter 2, Acceptance Procedures requiring 
acceptance/drawdown of awards with 45 days of notice of award, and Part IV, Chapter 2, section 16.606, State 
Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) requiring an "expeditious draw-down of payments."  

Jurisdictions accepting SCAAP awards are not required to submit financial or progress reports to OJP. For FY 2009 
SCAAP awards, the Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 2005 (Pub. L. 109-162, Title XI) requires that all 
SCAAP funds be used for correctional purposes only. Please see the use of funds list and certification below. With 
your acceptance (by clicking on the Accept button below) of SCAAP's terms, conditions, and award amount, OJP 
will initiate an electronic payment in that amount to your bank account of record, as verified through the on-line 
SCAAP registration process and in accordance with applicable E-Government rules and requirements.  

All issues related to the electronic transfer of funds or the bank account of record must be referred to the OCFO 
Customer Service Center at 800-458-0786. Please allow 15 business days for the electronic payment process to be 
complete before contacting OCFO. Please have the grant number, amount, and vendor information (noted above) 
available when you call.  
 
FY 2013 SCAAP Use of Funds List  

--- Construction ---
      Construction for inmate housing, inmate programs, prison industries in ADA compliance
--- Training/Education for offender ---
      Specific trade employment skills
      GED testing
      Job Preparedness
--- Training for corrections officers to help manage offender population ---
      Bi-lingual language skills
      Less than lethal technology training
      Diversity training

 
As the CEO or authorized designee of this jurisdiction, I understand the guidelines and requirements as associated 

with the previous statements and agree to abide by them in all matters involving the FY 2013 State Criminal Alien 
Assistance Program. 

 
 Accept Decline

Page 1 of 1State Criminal Alien Assistance Program

10/18/2013https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/gmsexternal/application.do?aspect=ACH&applicationID=238197
10/24/2013   Page 2 of 2Sheriff's Department - FY 2013 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) Grant Award  - 10/29/2013

24



Title of Grant: State Homeland Security Grant

Fund: 2485     Department: 151200
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Nandalyn Heaitley, LCSD Grants Coordinator

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

TitleTitle

October 1, 2013 September 30, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Grant Award

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

LE/Operations

May 23, 2013 June 10, 2013

SHSP Incident Management Team

Grant Overview:  The Lexington County Sheriff’s Department is the lead agency for the Midlands Incident Management Team.   
The team has received an award for Radio Base Stations that are digital multi-frequency Apex 800 MHz, VHF and UHF radios 
that will be used in the Midlands Incident Management Team command post to communicate with multiple agencies while 
managing an incident.  These radios will also allow programming of the National and the State Mutual Aide channels for 
statewide communications and the safety for all.  Specialized training for these incidents are required for  the IMT members.

The Homeland Security grant award is for $35,000 and has no match.

p ( g p , , , )

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:

Capital * Award Amount:

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approva

Last Updated:  10/12/12     By:  AD Finance Appro

10/18/2013

35,000.00$       

-$                  
10,000.00$       

Date

AD 10/18/2013

AP 10/18/2013

35,000$      
35,000$      

Initials

NH

25,000.00$       

% $ Amount

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

The maintenance  of this equipment will be continued with funds received from tax revenues and other revenues allocated within 
the Lexington County Sheriff's Department's annual budget.

Grant application was approved at the 6/11/13 Council meeting.

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 7Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
25



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Annual Budget
Fiscal Year - 2013-14

Amended Projected
 Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru Jun Thru Jun Thru Jun Requested Recommend Awarded
Code Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

*LE - SHSP Incident Management Team 2485:

Revenues:
457000 Federal Grant Income 68,210 120,658 120,658 156,897 35,000 35,000 35,000
801000 Op Trn from General Fund/LE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Revenue 68,210 120,658 120,658 156,897 35,000 35,000 35,000

***Total Appropriation  156,897 35,000 35,000 35,000

FUND BALANCE 
     Beginning of Year (5,180) (5,180) (5,180) (5,180)

FUND BALANCE - Projected
     End of Year (5,180) (5,180) (5,180) (5,180)

* Grant funded 100% from SLED.

Fund: 2485
Division:  Law Enforcement
Organization:  151200 - LE/Operations

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

SHSP INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM

Code   Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend Awarded
(Jun) (Jun)

Personnel

* Total Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operating Expenses
520303 Accounting/Auditing Services 300 0 0 0 0 0
521000 Office Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0
521200 Operating Supplies 3,642 0 31 0 0 0
522200 Small Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 2,000 0 0 0
522300 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 0 10 456 0 0 0
524100 Vehicle Insurance 657 0 659 0 0 0
525210 Conference, Meeting, & Training Expense 1,652 27,315 54,028 10,000 10,000 10,000
525230 Subscription, Dues, & Books 0 0 633 0 0 0
525400 Gas, Fuel, & Oil 125 34 279 0 0 0
525600 Uniforms & Clothing 6,242 0 0 0 0 0
529903 Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 0

* Total Operating 12,618 27,359 58,086 10,000 10,000 10,000

** Total Personnel & Operating 12,618 27,359 58,086 10,000 10,000 10,000

Capital
540000 Small Tools & Minor Equipment 2,342 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Equipment 58,431 93,343 98,811 0 0 0
5AE441 (3) Apex Radio Base Stations w/ Acc. 25,000 25,000 25,000

** Total Capital 60,773 93,343 98,811 25,000 25,000 25,000

*** Total Budget Appropriation 73,391 120,702 156,897 35,000 35,000 35,000

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 7Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
26



FUND:  2485 – SHSP INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200)        
FY:  2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST        Page 1   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

   
SECTION V. - PROGRAM OVERVIEW 

 
 
The Lexington County Sheriff’s Department is the lead agency for the Midlands Incident 
Management Team.   The team is requesting Radio Base Stations that are digital multi-frequency 
Apex 800 MHz, VHF and UHF radios that will be used in the Midlands Incident Management Team 
command post to communicate with multiple agencies while managing an incident.  These radios 
will also allow programming of the National and the State Mutual Aide channels for statewide 
communications and the safety for all.  Specialized training for these incidents is required for the 
IMT members. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 7Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
27



FUND:  2485 – SHSP INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY:  2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 SECTION VI.  C. – OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 
 
525210 – CONFERENCE, MEETING & TRAINING EXPENSE                                 $ 10,000 
 
The criteria of the Homeland Security grant funds require that all IMT unit members be trained in the specialized 
field for which they are job tasked.  In order to receive this specialized training for Incident Management, out of 
state training must be received.  Also, training in state for exercises which are mandated by the IMT criteria training 
specifics must be maintained for certification purposes.   The National conference will be attended by members at a 
location to be determined.  Members must also be trained for Threat Hazards and Risk Assessment. 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 7Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
28



FUND:  2485– SHSP INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200)  
FY:  2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1  

 SECTION VI. D. – CAPITAL LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 
 

5AE441 – (3) APEX RADIO BASE STATIONS & ACCESSORIES                                     $ 25,000 
 
The Radio Base Stations requested are digital multi-frequency Apex 800 MHz, VHF and UHF radios which include 
coax cable, antennas, mounts, hardware, programming, and other accessories.  These radio base stations will be used 
in the command post for the Midlands Incident Management Team.  These radios are a necessity for communicating 
with multiple agencies while managing an incident.  These radios will also allow the National and the State Mutual 
Aide channels to be programmed which allows for statewide communications and the safety for all.  
 

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 7Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
29



10/24/2013   Page 6 of 7

Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013

30



10/24/2013   Page 7 of 7

Sheriff's Department - SHSP Incident Management Team (IMT) Grant Award - 10/29/2013

31



Title of Grant: Violence Against Women Act (VAWA)

Fund: 2456     Department: 151200
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Nandalyn Heaitley, Sheriff's Office Grants Coordinator

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Violence Against Women Act 

December 8, 2012 May 23, 2013

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

LE/Operations
TitleTitle

October 1, 2013 September 30, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Grant Award

Grant Overview:  The Lexington County Sheriff's Department has been awarded the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) 
grant, which is used in the County to help curve Criminal Domestic Violence (CDV).  This is the seventh year of funding that we 
have received from the VAWA grant program. 

The award will cover a portion of the salary and fringes of a CDV Investigator and a CDV Program Coordinator.  There will be a 
transfer from the Sheriff's Department General Fund to cover the balance of  salary & fringes, and to cover operating costs. 

The grant is funded at 100%, but there is an in-kind match of 25% of the funding amount.  The in-kind match will come from the 
costs that are covered by the transfer from the Sheriff's Department General Fund. 

p ( g p , , , )

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:

Capital * Award Amount:

Total

Local Match Required: Yes X No

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:
 * In-kind matching funds.

Dept. Preparer

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approva

Last Updated:  10/12/12     By:  AD Finance Appro

Initials

NH

-$                  

% $ Amount

$78,099.00

Date

AD 10/18/2013

AP 10/3/2013

51%

78,098$      
73,769$      

49% $73,769.00

19,626.00$       

10/3/2013

151,868.00$     

132,242.00$     

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

There is no limit on the number of years that a grant can be funded through the VAWA grant program.  In the event Lexington 
County Sheriff's Department does not receive funding from the VAWA program, the Sheriff's Department will continue the 
program from funding received through tax revenues and other revenues within the Fiscal Year Budget.

Grant application was approved at the 3/26/13 Council meeting.

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
32



FY - 2013-14 Estimated Revenue

Amended Projected
Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru May Thru May Thru Jun Requested Approved Awarded
Code Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

*LE - Violence Against Women Act 2456:

Revenues:
457000 Federal Grant Income 115,458 79,694 74,654 74,654 78,098 78,098 73,769
461000 Investment Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
801000 Op Trn from General Fund/LE 43,323 61,408 61,408 61,408 78,099 78,099 78,099

** Total Revenue 158,781 141,102 136,062 136,062 156,197 156,197 151,868

***Total Appropriation 180,387 156,197 156,197 151,868

FUND BALANCE 
     Beginning of Year 47,626 3,301 3,301 3,301

FUND BALANCE - Projected
     End of Year 3,301 3,301 3,301 3,301

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Annual Budget 
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
33



Fund: 2456
Division: Law Enforcement
Organization: 151200 - LE/Operations

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Code   Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Approved Awarded

(May) (May)
Personnel

510100 Salaries & Wages - 2 86,219 77,726 101,043 101,043 85,995 94,638
510199 Special Overtime 2,051 1,388 0 0 0 0
510200 Overtime 0 0 0 0 0 0
511112 FICA - Employer's Portion 6,036 5,564 9,856 9,856 6,579 7,240
511113 State Retirement - Employer's Portion 3,835 3,833 5,119 5,119 4,241 4,977
511114 Police Retirement - Employer's Portion 5,761 5,357 6,529 6,529 5,905 6,123
511120 Insurance Fund Contribution - 2 15,600 14,300 19,350 15,600 15,600 15,600
511130 Workers Compensation 1,766 1,573 2,496 2,496 1,781 1,864
515600 Clothing Allowance 800 600 800 800 800 800
519999 Personnel Contingency 0 0 0 0 3,174 1,000

*  Total Personnel 122,068 110,342 145,193 141,443 124,075 132,242

Operating Expenses
520303 Accounting/Auditing Services 425 0 0 0 0 0
521000 Office Supplies 172 621 1,827 500 750 500
521200 Operating Supplies 0 0 2,000 500 250 500
522200 Small Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0
522300 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 43 134 5,437 2,000 2,000 2,500
524100 Vehicle Insurance 0 663 1,108 546 546 546
524201 General Tort Liability Insurance 798 798 1,492 800 824 824

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT
Annual Budget 

Fiscal Year - 2013-14

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

524201 General Tort Liability Insurance 798 798 1,492 800 824 824
524202 Surety Bonds 15 0 5 0 0 0
525004 WAN Service Charges 727 440 2,153 720 720 920
525020 Pagers & Cell Phones 400 821 3,480 1,440 1,440 1,440
525030 800 MHz Radio Service Changes 0 0 2,269 600 740 740
525031 800 MHz Radio Maintenance Fee 0 0 0 200 200 200
525041 E-mail Service Charges 162 149 312 168 162 162
525210 Conference, Meeting & Training Expense 50 0 45 1,000 1,000 2,500
525230 Subscriptions, Dues & Books 0 0 0 80 80 80
525240 Personal Mileage Reimbursement 992 1,247 2,808 1,200 1,200 1,500
525400 Gas, Fuel and Oil 2,500 1,762 11,361 5,000 5,000 6,000
529903 Contingency 0 0 897 0 17,210 1,214

* Total Operating 6,284 6,634 35,194 14,754 32,122 19,626

** Total Personnel & Operating 128,352 116,976 180,387 156,197 156,197 151,868

Capital
540000 Small Tools & Minor Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0
540010 Minor Software 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0

*** Total Budget Appropriation 128,352 116,976 180,387 156,197 156,197 151,868

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
34



FUND:  2456 – VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT 
LE/OPERATIONS (151200)        
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST        Page 1  
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SECTION V. – PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
Three decisions made by the United States Supreme Court (Washington v. Crawford, Davis v. 
Washington and Hamon v. Indiana) changed the way in which prosecutors can proceed with 
domestic violence prosecution, especially when victims do not appear for court.  The Lexington 
County Sheriff’s Department began keeping detailed statistics on the specialized criminal domestic 
violence court (CDVC) in July 2005.  At least 80% of victims either do not appear or have 
reconciled with the offender at the first appearance date.  This court date is usually held within six 
weeks of arrest.  These statistics demonstrate the need to proceed with victimless prosecution or to 
have the ability to demonstrate to a jury why a victim recants testimony at trial.  Increasing the level 
of pre-trial contact with the victims through telephone calls, letters, and, when necessary, home 
visits is a benefit to the victim, and increases the level of victim participation in the prosecutorial 
process. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
35



FUND:  2456 –VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT  
LE/ OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1  

 
 

SECTION VI. B. – LISTING OF POSITIONS 
 
 

Full Time Equivalent 
Positions  General Fund Other Fund Total Grade 

Current Staffing Level: 
Victim’s Bill of Rights Fund (141) 
 Victim Asst. Officer/Law Enf.  3  0  3 3 13 
 Victim Assistance Coordinator  2  0  2 2 6 
       
   
Totals:      5    5 5  
  
 
 

Full Time Equivalent 
Positions  General Fund Other Fund Total Grade 

 
LE /Operations (151200) 

VAWA Investigator   1  0  1 1 13 
 Program Coordinator   1  0  1 1 11 
  
   
 
 
Totals:      2  0  2 2   

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
36



FUND 2456 - VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT  
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 1 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 SECTION VI. C. – OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 
 

521000 - OFFICE SUPPLIES              $ 500 
 
Office supplies are required to perform job tasks.  Some of the items that will be purchased are pens, portfolio 
folders for the case file, printer cartridges, calendars and other general office supply needs.   
 
The estimated cost of all office supplies is $500. 
 
521200 - OPERATING SUPPLIES             $ 500 
 
Quality photograph paper is required to print pictures taken a various points during the investigation.  A better 
quality paper is needed so that the photograph does not fade.  These pictures may also become part of the case file 
that is kept for many years.  In addition, various sizes of batteries will be required for battery-operated equipment.   
 
 
522300 - VEHICLE REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE        $ 2,500 
 
Vehicle repairs and maintenance are needed for the grant vehicle.   
 
 
524100 - VEHICLE INSURANCE                   $ 546 
 
Vehicle insurance is required for the vehicles.     
 
 
524201 - GENERAL TORT LIABILITY INSURANCE           $ 824 
 
General Tort Liability Insurance is required for each person employed by the County.    
 
 
525004 – WAN SERVICE CHARGES             $ 920 
 
Air card fees are required for the personnel to have access to the internet, automated CDV files, and various criminal 
databases to include NCIC. 
 
 
525020 - PAGERS AND CELL PHONES          $ 1,440 
 
Cell phone service is requested to enable communication between the victim and the victim assistance officer at any 
time of day.  In addition, it enables another method of communication that is always needed.   
 
 
 525030 – 800 MHz RADIO SERVICE CHARGES           $ 740 
  
The 800 MHz radio monthly fees are estimated, which includes an allotment for roaming fees that may be incurred.   
 
 
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 6 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
37



FUND 2456 - VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT  
LE/OPERATIONS (151200) 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET REQUEST  Page 2 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
525031 - 800 MHz RADIO MAINTENANCE FEES           $ 200 
 
The 800 MHz radio must be maintained to operate on a 24/7 basis.  Monthly maintenance fees are necessary to 
ensure that the radios are operational at all times. 
 
 
525041 – E-MAIL SERVICE CHARGES                            $ 162 
 
With technology progressing as quickly as it has, e-mail is nearly a necessity.   
 
 
525210 –CONFERENCE, MEETING & TRAINING EXPENSES       $ 2,500 
 
Training is required for ongoing certifications for the VAWA program coordinator and investigator.   
 
 
525230 – SUBSCRIPTIONS, DUES, & BOOKS              $ 80 
 
The certified law enforcement officer dues for the South Carolina Law Enforcement Association are paid from this 
account.    
 
 
525240 - PERSONAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT        $ 1,500 
 
The grant reimburses the mileage at the federal rate for the grant-funded program coordinator to allow travel to court 
and to perform their duties within the scope of the grant. 
 
 
525400 - GAS, FUEL, AND OIL             $ 6,000 
 
The investigator must travel to court and investigative scenes while performing his duties.  The budgeted amount is 
an estimate.    
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 7 of 9Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013
38



10/24/2013   Page 8 of 9

Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013

39



10/24/2013   Page 9 of 9

Sheriff's Department - Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Grant Award - 10/29/2013

40



**This page intentionally left blank**

41



**This page intentionally left blank**

42



**This page intentionally left blank**

43



10/24/2013   Page 1 of 8Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013
44



Title of Grant: FY 11 Citizens Corp Grant (CERT)

Fund: 2480     Department: 131101
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X

Type of Grant: Reimbursement X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Michael J. Kalec, Emergency Manager

Date Grant Information Released:       Date Grant Application Due:

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet Overview Line Item Narratives etc ):

Citizens Corp/CERT
TitleTitle

October 29, 2013

October 10, 2013

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

Emergency Preparedness

Grant Award

Block

March 31, 2014

Grant Overview:  

These funds will be used in support of the Citizens Corp/CERT Program activities in the County.

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:

Capital * Award Amount:

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer:

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approval:

Last Updated:  10/12/12     By:  AD Finance Approval:

Initials

TP

Date

AD 10/21/2013

% $ Amount

MK 10/18/2013

9,000.00$         

-$                  
1,832.00$         
7,168.00$         

10/18/2013

9,000.00$    

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

None

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 8Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013
45



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
CITIZEN CORPS GRANT

Annual Budget
Fiscal Year - 2013-14

Amended Projected
 Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru May Thru May Thru Jun Requested Recommend Approved
Code Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

* Citizen Corps Grant 2480:

Revenues:
457000 Federal Grant Income 6,821 16,960 12,926 12,926 0 0 9,000
801000 Op Trn for General Fund/Cty Ordinary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Revenue 6,821 16,960 12,926 12,926 0 0 9,000

***Total Appropriation  12,926 0 0 9,000

FUND BALANCE 
     Beginning of Year 0 0 0 0

FUND BALANCE - Projected
     End of Year 0 0 0 0

Fund: 2480
Division:  Public Safety
Organization:  131101 Emergency Preparedness

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011 12 2012 13 2012 13 2013 14 2013 14 2013 14Object   Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Code     Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend Approved

(May) (May)
Personnel

* Total Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operating Expenses
520200 Contracted Services 0 0 0 0 0 1,800
520800 Outside Printing 1,567 1,735 1,735 0 0 0
521000 Office Supplies 0 150 150 0 0 0
521200 Operating Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0
525600 Uniforms & Clothing 2,026 3,728 3,741 0 0 0
529903 Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 32

* Total Operating 3,593 5,613 5,626 0 0 1,832

** Total Personnel & Operating 3,593 5,613 5,626 0 0 1,832

Capital
540000 Small Tools & Minor Equipment 0 299 300 0 0 0
540010 Minor Software 0 0 0 0 0 100

All Other Equipment 3,228 6,253 7,000 0 0 0
5AE456 (15) HAM Radios 850
5AE457 (3) Canopies (Temporary) 1,980
5AE458 (1) ID and Credential System 2,200
5AE459 (1) Laptop (F1) 1,038
5AE460 (3) Banners 1,000

** Total Capital 3,228 6,552 7,300 0 0 7,168

*** Total Budget Appropriation 6,821 12,165 12,926 0 0 9,000

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 8Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013
46



FUND 2480 – CITIZENS CORP/CERT 
PS/EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS (131101)  Page 1 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET 

 
 
 

SECTION V – PROGRAM OVERVIEW  
 
 

Public Safety/Emergency Management CERT Grant 
 
Summary of Program: 
 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) grant provides equipment and resources to assist the County’s 
CERT team to operate.  The CERT Program helps train people to be better prepared to respond to emergency 
situations in their communities.  When emergencies happen, CERT members can give critical support to first 
responders, provide immediate assistance to victims, and organize spontaneous volunteers at a disaster site.  CERT 
members can also help with non-emergency projects that help improve the safety of the community.  
 
This grant is awarded annually to support Emergency Management and the Community Emergency Response Team 
(CERT).  There is no match to this grant.   
 
 

 
Goals and Objectives: 
 

1. “Educate citizens in Lexington County to be prepared to take care of themselves, family, friends and 
neighbors in the event of a disaster of any type until trained emergency responders can arrive.” 

 
2. “Provide assistance to government agencies that request assistance with assessment, documentation, 

communications, shelter management and traffic management.” 
 

3. “Publicize Lexington County CERT activities and promote awareness of and support for the Lexington 
County CERT Program among government entities, businesses, communities and individuals in the 
County.” 
 

 
  

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 8Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013
47



FUND 2480 – CITIZENS CORP/CERT 
PS/EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS (131101)  Page 2 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET 

 
 

SECTION VI. A. – SUMMARY OF REVENUES 
 
 
 

457000 – FEDERAL GRANT INCOME         $ 9,000 
 
 
 

 
 
 

SECTION VI. C. – OPERATING LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 
 
520200- COTRACTED SERVICES           $1,800 
 
This account will be used to pay for the cost associated with the set up and mounting communication equipment 
(i.e.: HAM Radio and 800 MHz antennas and equipment for CERT) in the EOC.   
 
 

 
 
 
 

SECTION VI. D. – CAPITAL LINE ITEM NARRATIVES 
 
 
 
540010 – MINOR SOFTWARE              $ 100 
 
This account will be used to purchase a revised license to provide CERT members use of the County’s radios for 
events and incidents. 
 
 
5AE456 – (15) HANDHELD HAM RADIOS            $ 850 
 
This account will be used to purchase (15) Handheld Two-Way HAM Radios for use during outreach events, 
exercises/drills and actual CERT responses. 
 
 
5AE457 – (3) CANOPIES (TEMPORARY)         $ 1,980 
 
This account will be used to purchase (3) canopies for CERT/Public Safety/Emergency Management outreach and 
education events and during actual events in inclement weather. 
 
 
5AE458 – (1) ID & CREDIDATION SYSTEM         $ 2,200 
  
This account will be used to purchase a portable identification system that allows ID cards to be made and a means 
to assist with credentialing and accountability of CERT personnel. 
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 8Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013
48



FUND 2480 – CITIZENS CORP/CERT 
PS/EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS (131101)  Page 3 
FY 2013-14 BUDGET 

 
5AE459 – (1) LAPTOP (F1)           $ 1,038 
 
This account will be used to purchase (1) laptop for use with the ID & credential system.  
  
 
5AE460 – (3) BANNERS            $ 1,000 
 
This account will be used to purchase (3) free standing blind type banners for use in outreach and education 
programs.  
  
 

10/24/2013   Page 6 of 8Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013
49



10/24/2013   Page 7 of 8

Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013

50



10/24/2013   Page 8 of 8

Public Safety/Preparedness - FY 2011 Citizens Corp/CERT Grant Award - 10/29/2013

51



1 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

ORDINANCE NO.  13-08 
 
 AUTHORIZING THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RECREATION AND AGING 

COMMISSION ON BEHALF OF THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RURAL 
RECREATION DISTRICT TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING $23,000,000; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The County Council (the “County Council”) of Lexington County, South 
Carolina (the “County”), hereby finds and determines: 
 
  (a) The Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission (the “Commission”) 
is the governing body of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District (the “District”) and has 
submitted a petition dated September 4, 2013, to the County Council requesting authorization to issue 
not exceeding $23,000,000 principal amount general obligation bonds of the District (the “Bonds”). 
 
  (b) The District was established pursuant to Act No. 1201 of the Acts and Joint 
Resolutions of the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina, Regular Session of 1968, as 
amended (the “Act”). 
 
  (c) The corporate powers and responsibilities of the District are performed by the 
Commission and as such the Commission is the governing body of the District.  The Act committed to 
the Commission the power to acquire, by gift, purchase or through the exercise of eminent domain, 
lands, or interest thereon whereon to establish physical education and recreation facilities. 
 
  (d) Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, 
as amended, provides that special purpose districts shall have the power to issue bonded indebtedness 
only for a purpose which is a public purpose and a corporate purpose in an amount not exceeding eight 
percent (8%) of the assessed value of all taxable property therein upon such terms and conditions as the 
General Assembly shall prescribe by general law. 
 
  (e) The Council constitutes the “county board” of the County and the District 
constitutes a “special purpose district,” as such quoted terms are defined in the Code. 
 
  (f) Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 11, Article 5, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 
1976, as amended (the “Code”), the county boards of all counties of the State of South Carolina 
wherein special purpose districts exist are empowered to authorize the governing body of such special 
purpose district to issue bonds of the special purpose district whose proceeds shall be used in 
furtherance of any power of the special purpose district. 
 
  (g) Pursuant to the Code the County Council is empowered to authorize the 
Commission of the District to issue bonds of the District whose proceeds shall be used in furtherance of 
any power of the District. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Agining Commission on Behalf of teh...
52



2 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

  (h) The assessed value of all taxable property of the District as of June 30, 2013 is 
$825,462,500.  Eight percent of such assessed value is $66,037,000.  The District’s outstanding general 
obligation debt for computation purposes under Article X, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State of 
South Carolina, 1895, as amended, is $19,200,000.  Thus, the District may incur $46,837,000 of general 
obligation debt within its applicable debt limitation. 
 
  (i) It is now in the best interest of the District for the Commission to provide for 
the issuance and sale of the Bonds of the District pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the 
Constitution and laws of the State of South Carolina in the principal amount of not exceeding 
$23,000,000, the proceeds of which will be used for improvements and enlargements to the District and 
costs of issuance of the Bonds. 
 
  (j) Prior to the enactment of this Ordinance, County Council shall hold a public 
hearing on the question of the issuance of the Bonds as required by Section 6-11-830, Code of Laws of 
South Carolina 1976 as amended. 
 
 SECTION 2.  Pursuant to the aforementioned constitutional and statutory provisions, the 
Commission, on behalf of the District, is hereby authorized to issue the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be 
dated, shall mature, shall be in such denomination, shall bear such interest, shall have such redemption 
provisions, shall be executed and shall contain such other provisions as the Commission shall 
determine. 
 
 SECTION 3.  No election shall be held as a condition to the issuance of Bonds. 
 
 SECTION 4.  For the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively 
mature, and for the creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide for the prompt 
payment thereof, the full faith, credit, taxing power and resources of the District shall be irrevocably 
pledged, and there shall be levied annually by the Auditor of Lexington County and collected by the 
Treasurer of Lexington County, in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a tax 
without limit on all taxable property of the District sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the 
Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. 
 
 SECTION 5.  The Commission is authorized to do all things necessary or convenient in 
accordance with applicable law to effect the issuance of the Bonds at such time as it deems necessary 
and in the interest of the District. 
 
 SECTION 6.  Following the enactment of this Ordinance, a Notice in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit A shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the County for three 
successive weeks. 
 
 SECTION 7.  All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in 
conflict herewith or the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the General Obligation Bonds are, to 
the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from 
and after its passage and approval. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Agining Commission on Behalf of teh...
53



3 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

 SECTION 8.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its enactment. 
 
 Enacted this ___ day of November, 2013. 
 
      LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA  
 
 
              
      Chair, County Council 
 
(SEAL)  
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________  
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
Approved:  
 
___________________________  
County Attorney 
 
Date of First Reading:    October 8, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Second Reading: October 29, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Public Hearing:   October 29, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Third Reading:   November 12, 2013 (Tentative) 
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Agining Commission on Behalf of teh...
54



A-1 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF 
NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 6-11-870, CODE OF LAWS 

OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS AMENDED, 
OF APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL 

OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
OF THE ISSUANCE OF  

NOT EXCEEDING $23,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
OF THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RURAL RECREATION DISTRICT 

 
 
 On September 4, 2013, the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission (the 
(“Commission”) on behalf of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District (the “District”) petitioned 
the County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina (the “County Council”) requesting that 
County Council (a) accept the filing of a Petition; (b) make a finding that it is in the best interest of the 
District for County Council to authorize the Commission to issue not exceeding $23,000,000 general 
obligation bonds (the “General Obligation Bonds”) (the “Bonds”), (c) order a public hearing upon the 
question of the issuance of the Bonds of the District; and (d) enact an ordinance authorizing the 
Commission on behalf of the District to issue Bonds of the District without the necessity of an election 
in the District upon the question of the issuance of such Bonds. 
 
 The County Council caused the required notice to be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in Lexington County and on __________, 2013, held a public hearing in Council Chambers, 
Lexington County Administration Building, 212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina, on the 
question of the issuance of the Bonds.  The hearing was conducted publicly and both proponents and 
opponents were given full opportunity to be heard. 
 
 The Bonds will be issued at such time as the Commission determines.  For the payment of the 
principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and for the creation of such sinking fund 
as may be necessary to provide for the prompt payment thereof, the full faith, credit, taxing power and 
resources of the District shall be irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied and collected annually 
upon all taxable property of the District a tax, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient for such 
purposes. 
 
 County Council determined that no election shall be ordered in the District upon the question of 
the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
 Any person affected by the action of the County Council may, by action de novo instituted in 
the Court of Common Pleas for Lexington County, within twenty (20) days following the last 
publication of this notice, but not afterwards, challenge the action of the County Council. 
                                                                                    
      Chairman, County Council of Lexington County, 

South Carolina 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Agining Commission on Behalf of teh...
55



**This page intentionally left blank**

56



**This page intentionally left blank**

57



County of Lexington 
Department of Solid Waste Management 

498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, South Carolina 29073 

Telephone: (803) 755-3325 
Facsimile:  (803) 755-3833 

 
 
 

To:  Adam DuBose, Grants Administrator 
 
From: Amanda Edwards, Recycling Coordinator 
 
Date: October 18, 2013 
 
Re:  Palmetto Pride Grant Application 
 

 
 
Solid Waste Management is requesting Council’s approval to apply for $8,000 through PalmettoPride’s 
Community Pride Grant.  
 
If the grant is awarded, these funds will be used to purchase indigenous and/or drought-resistant 
perennials for the beautification projects at the Lexington County Sheriff's Department Training Center 
and the Sandhills Collection & Recycling Center. Beautification plans have been drawn up and any 
additional funds within this beautification project will go towards streetscaping Landfill Lane. 
In addition, we plan to purchase additional recycling containers to add to the existing project to encourage 
recycling at parks and sports complexes. We also plan on purchasing additional event recycling containers 
(cardboard).  These containers will be distributed for use at events with the County. These initiatives will 
help to increase our recycling rate and efforts to reduce litter.    
 
With the November 15 application deadline, we are respectfully requesting that committee report out and 
it goes to Council at their October 29, 2013 meeting.  With approval, signatures are required on the 
attached letter of support as well.  

 
We appreciate your understanding and consideration of this matter.  If you have any questions, please let 
me know.    

 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
58



Title of Grant: PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant

Fund: 5725     Department: 121207
No. No.

Type of Summary: Grant Application X

Type of Grant: X

Grant Period: to

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Amanda Edwards, SW Recycling Coordinator

Date Grant Information Released:        Date Grant Application Due:

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet, Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

SW/PalmettoPride

October 1, 2013 November 15, 2013

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

SW/Recycling
TitleTitle

January 1, 2014 December 31, 2014

Reimbursement Block

Grant Award

Grant Overview:  It has been determined that there is a need to enhance the aesthetics at the Lexington County Sheriff's 
Department Training Center and the Sandhills Collection & Recycling Center. Beautification plans have been drawn up and these
grant funds will purchase indigenous and/or drought-resistant perennials for the landscaping at both locations.  Any additional 
funds within this project will go towards streetscaping Landfill Lane.

We plan to purchase 5 additional recycling containers to add to the existing project to encourage recycling at parks and sports 
complexes. We also plan on purchasing additional event recycling containers (cardboard).  These containers will be distributed 
for use at events with the County. These initiatives will help to increase our recycling rate and efforts to reduce litter.  

p ( g p , , , )

Personnel
Operating * Application Amount:

Capital * Award Amount:

Total

Local Match Required: Yes No X

If Yes, What is the Percentage / Amount:

Dept. Preparer

F:\windows\excel2k\forms\grants\blankgrantsummaryform.xls Dept. Approva

Last Updated:  10/12/12     By:  AD Finance Appro

Initials

AE

1,500.00$         

% $ Amount

Date

AD 10/18/2013

DE 10/18/2013

8,000$        6,500.00$         

10/18/2013

8,000.00$         

-$                  

Requirements at the End of this Grant (please explain in detail):

Participate in the Great American Cleanup (SWM proposes to do this through Keep the Midlands Beautiful), submit a mid year 
progress report and submit results of initiatives at the end of the year.

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
59



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
SW/PALMETTO PRIDE GRANT

Annual Budget 
Fiscal Year - 2013-14

Amended Projected
Received Budget Revenues

Object Actual Thru Jun Thru Jun Thru Jun Requested Recommend Approved
Code   Revenue Account Title 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

* SW/Palmetto Pride Grant 5725:

Revenues:
459900 Miscellaneous Payments & Grants 5,880 6,891 5,500 5,500 8,000 8,000
461000 Investment Interest 1 0 0 0 0 0

** Total Revenue 5,881 6,891 5,500 5,500 8,000 8,000

***Total Appropriation 10,000 8,000 8,000

Deferred Revenue 4,542

FUND BALANCE 
      Beginning of Year 142 184 184

FUND BALANCE - Projected
      End of Year 184 184 184

Fund: 5725
Division: Public WorksDivision: Public Works
Organization: 121207 - Solid Waste / Recycling

BUDGET
Object Expenditure 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Code   Classification Expend Expend Amended Requested Recommend Approved

(Jun) (Jun)
Operating Expenses

520103 Landscaping/Ground Maintenance 0 6,891 10,000 5,000 5,000
521200 Operating Supplies 5,880 0 0 1,500 1,500

* Total Operating 5,880 6,891 10,000 6,500 6,500

**Total Personnel & Operating 5,880 6,891 10,000 6,500 6,500

Capital
599999 Capital Clearing (5,880) 0 0 0 0

All Other Equipment 5,880 0 0 0 0
(5) Recycling Containers 1,500 1,500

**Total Capital 0 0 0 1,500 1,500

** Total Appropriation 5,880 6,891 10,000 8,000 8,000

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
60



 

COMMUNITY PRIDE GRANT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
 
Purpose of Grant 
The Community Pride Grant is a competitive grant that provides organizations up to $8,000 to develop 
successful anti-litter programs and beautification activities at the local level (levels of grant funds are outlined 
below).  This grant will only pay for startup expenses for new programs or additions to existing programs.  It will 
not pay recurring expenses.   
 

PalmettoPride is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization committed to reducing litter and encouraging beautification 
efforts in South Carolina. To achieve these goals, the organization focuses on four essential areas — 
enforcement; education; awareness; and pickup.  The Community Pride Grant program is an integral part of 
PalmettoPride’s grassroots initiative.  
 

Eligible Applicants 
All litter control organizations, beautification groups, government organizations, neighborhood associations, 
colleges, universities and non-profit organizations in South Carolina are eligible to apply for these funds. Priority 
will be given to groups who have not received a grant within the last two (2) fiscal years and those who partner 
with other volunteer organizations committed to litter reduction and beautification.  
 

All grant recipients will be required to participate in the Great American Cleanup.   Prior grant recipients who 
are not in compliance with grant requirements will be deemed ineligible to receive funds.  No organization 
will be awarded more than one Community Pride grant per funding cycle.  Joint projects are also only eligible 
for one grant award.   
 

Grant Period 
The Community Pride Grants are awarded for one year. The grant period begins on January 1st and ends on 
December 31st.  
 

Levels of Funding 

 Up to $2,500 neighborhood or community group 

 Up to $5,000 city, town, college/university 

 Up to $8,000 county program, state agency 

Use of Grant Funds 
Eligible grant activities may include any combination of the following: 

 Litter reduction activities: 
o Must participate in the Great American Cleanup  

 

 Beautification activities: 
o Must be on public property accessible to all citizens 
o All projects planned in SCDOT right of ways must be approved by SCDOT and follow native 

planting guides for long-term results. 
o Must include long-term maintenance agreements, schematic of beautification plan and/or 

photos of intended project area 
o Must participate in the Great American Cleanup  

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
61



  

 
Costs not funded by grant: 

Absolutely no salaries, stipends or labor costs 
Field trips 
Food or drinks (except water) 
Flyers  
Large yard equipment (i.e. riding lawn mowers) 
Transportation costs (i.e. gas, mileage) 

 

Donated Items: 
Bags 
Gloves 
Safety Vests 

 

In order to be able to provide more grant funds statewide, PalmettoPride purchases these items in bulk.  We 
reserve the right to limit the quantity of items donated.  
 

Application Submission Process 
A governing body, such as County or City Council, may administer grant funding. PalmettoPride reserves the 
right to reject all proposals and not award any grant funds under this solicitation.  Failure to follow the directions 
outlined in the application guidelines will result in the application not being considered for funding.   
 

DO NOT SUBMIT PROPOSALS IN BINDERS OR FOLDERS.  
 

Applications must be organized as follows:    
1. PalmettoPride Cover page  
2. Itemized Budget   
3. Program Narrative  
4. Maintenance Agreement (For beautification projects) 
5. Landscaping plan and/or photos of intended project area (For beautification projects) 
6. Terms And Conditions  
7. Two letters of support from elected officials 

 

One (1) marked original and two (2) copies of the entire grant proposal must be postmarked by November 15th.  
All grant proposals should be mailed to the following address:  
 

PalmettoPride 
Community Pride Grants Program 
2700 Middleburg Drive, Suite 216 
Columbia, South Carolina 29204 

 

Questions regarding the PalmettoPride Community Pride Grants should be directed to: 
 

Sherryl Jenkins 
Grants Coordinator 

(877) 725-7733, or email questions to: sjenkins@palmettopride.org 
 

 
  

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
62



  

 

COMMUNITY PRIDE GRANT 
APPLICATION COVER PAGE 

 
PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT ALL INFORMATION 

 
Organization               
 
* Contact Person              
 
Address               
 
City      County                      Zip    
 
Telephone (  )       Fax (  )      
 
Email               
 

* Please note: The contact person identified above will receive the grant check and all  
grant-related correspondence.   
   
 

Type of Organization (please check) 

 Neighborhood or community group – up to $2,500 

 City, Town, College, University – up to $5,000 

 County or State Agency – up to $8,000 
 

Projected number of participants in project: 
 
Staff       Community Members        Elected Officials      Law Enforcement    
 

Type of Activity (please check all that apply) 

 Litter Reduction  

 Beautification 

 Cleanup Supply Donation (Please complete GAC Supply Request Form) 
 

 

 
 
Amount of Funding Requested: $     
 
  

10/24/2013   Page 6 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
63



  

 

COMMUNITY PRIDE GRANT 
ITEMIZED BUDGET FORM 

 

ITEMIZED DESCRIPTION: QUANTITY 
TOTAL 
COST 

REQUESTED 
FUNDS 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

TOTAL 
  

10/24/2013   Page 7 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
64



  

 

COMMUNITY PRIDE GRANT 
PROJECT NARRATIVE 

 
 

1. Is this a new or existing project?  If this is an existing project, how long has it been on-going? 
 
 
 
 
 

2. What types of activities are involved in this project? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Will the work be performed by volunteers, paid contractors or both?    
If both, what percentage (i.e. 50% volunteer, 50% contractor)   

 
  

10/24/2013   Page 8 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
65



  

COMMUNITY PRIDE GRANT PROJECT NARRATIVE 

 
 
 

4. What benefit to the community does this project offer?   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. How many citizens are in your community and approximately how many will benefit from this 
project? 

10/24/2013   Page 9 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
66



County of Lexington 
  
 County Council 

 212 South Lake Drive, Suite 601 
 Lexington, South Carolina 29072 
                                                TELEPHONE: (803) 785-8103    FAX: (803) 785-8101 
 
 

   
James E. Kinard, Jr.  
District 1 
 
 
 
Frank J. Townsend, III 
District 2 
 
 
 
M. Kent Collins 
District 3 
 
 
 
Debra B. Summers 
District 4 
 
 
 
Bobby C. Keisler 
District 5 
 
 
 
Johnny W. Jeffcoat 
District 6 
Vice Chairman  
 
 
 
K. Brad Matthews 
District 7 
 
 
 
William B. Banning, Sr. 
District 8 
Chairman 
 
 
 
M. Todd Cullum 
District 9 
Parliamentarian 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
      

  October 29, 2013 
 
 
 
PalmettoPride Community Pride Grants Program 
2700 Middleburg Place, Suite 216 
Columbia, SC 29204 
 
Dear PalmettoPride: 
 
On behalf of Lexington County Solid Waste Management, we wish to express our 
enthusiastic support for their Community Pride Grant application of $8,000 to 
fund the purchase of plants for the beautification projects at the Sheriff’s 
Department Training Facility and the Sandhills Collection and Recycling Center, 
as well as the purchase of additional recycling containers to enhance the litter 
reduction initiatives within the County. 
 
Lexington County and our Solid Waste Management Department have long been 
involved in litter prevention and recycling activities, largely through our valued 
partnership with PalmettoPride.  We appreciate your ongoing efforts to eradicate 
litter in South Carolina and look forward to using Community Pride Grant funding 
to create an even cleaner, more beautiful Lexington County. 
 
 Sincerely, 

 
 
  

   William B. Banning, Sr. 
   Chairman 
   Lexington County Council 

 
 
 

   M. Todd Cullum 
   Chairman 
   Solid Waste Committee 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 10 of 10Solid Waste Management - PalmettoPride Community Pride Grant Application - 10/29/2013
67



**This page intentionally left blank**

68



**This page intentionally left blank**

69



**This page intentionally left blank**

70



**This page intentionally left blank**

71



**This page intentionally left blank**

72



**This page intentionally left blank**

73



**This page intentionally left blank**

74



County of Lexington 
Department of Solid Waste Management 

498 Landfill Lane 
Lexington, South Carolina 29073 

Telephone: (803) 755-3325 
Facsimile:  (803) 755-3833 

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 
 
 

DATE: October 18, 2013       
 
TO: Joe Mergo, County Administrator       
 
FROM: David L. Eger, Director of Solid Waste Management 
 Amanda H. Edwards, Recycling Coordinator (presenter) 
  
RE: Lexington County Green Business Member Recognition 
 
Lexington County Solid Waste and Public Works Departments are proud to induct a new 
organization into the Green Business Certification Program.  Below is the information for the 
County’s newest Green Business Member: 
 
 
 Larry Hutto State Farm 

Certifying in all areas available: Energy Efficiency, Water Conservation/Urban Runoff, 
Indoor/Outdoor Air Quality, and Waste Reduction/Recycling. 

 
 
We ask that this organization be recognized at the 4:30 Council Meeting on October 29, 2013. 
 
 
 

 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 1Administrator - New Green Business Member - 10/29/2013
75



Filename: APPOINTMENTS\APPOINTMENT MEMO.word   

 
 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
October 29, 2013 

  

  

 

 DEBRA SUMMERS 

 Assessment Appeals Board - Linda Ham; term expired 09/21/13; confirmed desire NOT to serve 

another term; pending qualified board nominee 

 Nancy K. Perry Children’s Shelter - Rob Winchester; term expired 06/30/13;confirmed desire 

NOT to serve another term; pending qualified board nominee 

 

  

 JOHNNY JEFFCOAT 

 Library Board - Sara Caldwell; term expired 09/26/13; not eligible for reappointment; pending 

qualified board nominee 

 

 

 BOBBY KEISLER 

 Museum Board - Isaac Porter; term expires 11/01/13; not eligible for reappointment; pending 

qualified board nominee 

 

 

 BRAD MATTHEWS 

 Accommodations Tax Board - William Teague; term expired 12/31/12; not eligible for 

reappointment; pending qualified board nominee 

 Board of Zoning Appeals - Ed Yates; term expires 12/31/13; eligible for reappointment; 

confirmed desire to serve another term  

 

 

 BILL BANNING 

 Museum Board - Linda Reynolds; term expires 11/01/13; eligible for reappointment; confirmed 

desire to serve another term 

 

 

 TODD CULLUM 

 Assessment Appeals Board - William Power; term expired 09/21/12; not eligible for 

reappointment; pending qualified board nominee 

 Museum - Carol Metts; term expires 11/01/13; resigned effective 06/27/11; pending qualified 

board nominee 

 Board of Zoning Appeals - Carl Sherwood; term expires 12/31/13; eligible for reappointment; 

confirmed desire to serve another term  

 

 

 

 

 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 4County Council - Boards and Commissions - 10/29/2013
76



Filename: APPOINTMENTS\APPOINTMENT MEMO.word   

 
 

 

Page 2 of 4 

AT LARGE: 

 

Central Midlands Development Board 

 Art Guerry  -  term expires 12/31/2013 

 

 

Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (COMET)  

 Lil Mood  - term expires 11/01/13; eligible to serve another term; confirmed desire to serve 

another term  

 

 

Lexington County Wrecker Rotation Disciplinary Board 

 Richard Allen Adams - term expires 11/10/13; eligible for reappointment; confirmed desire to 

serve another term  

 

 

Lexington/Richland Alcohol and Drug Abuse Council 

 Don Richards - term expires 12/31/13; eligible for reappointment; confirmed desire to serve 

another term  

 Steve Hatchell -  term expires 12/31/13; eligible for reappointment; confirmed desire to serve 

another term  

 

 

Midlands Authority Conventions, Sports & Tourism 

 Tammy Shoffstall - term expired 06/30/13; ineligible for reappointment due to relocation; 

nomination form for Jana Medlin (attached) 

   

 

River Alliance 

 Mike Crapps - resigned effective as of 08/30/13; pending qualified board nominee  

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 4County Council - Boards and Commissions - 10/29/2013
77



Mldlands Authority for Conventions, Sports and Tourlsm Board 
(Name of BoadCommiesion to which yo J are applying) 

Name: Mediln Jana Brown 
(Last) V im (Middle) 

Home Address (Please provide both physical and mailing address if different) 
strat 61 7 Westover Rd 

city Columbla state SC 2921 0 

Address: 
(Former address if less than five (5) yem a1 current address) 

Telephone: Home ( ) Oftics ( ) 803-ggw10'1 ~ o b i l e  ( 

Ate you a permanent resident of k i n g t o n  County? yes * No 

Are you related to anyone that is employed by the County or aflilimd wfth the BdCommission fbr whlch 
you are applying7 Yes No X 

If yes, pleaso list the relatiue'e name 

Voter Registration Number: 240 30 Driver's Liwnse ~tate/NumberSC 1 01 1226061 

Occupation: Sales 

Address: 108 Saluda Pointe ~t city Lexington state SC zip 29210 - 
Why would you like to serve on this Board~Comrnission? & a  a l a e m  8na kal- pama of Lmxlnfmn Cwnty, 

Do you serve on my local or state board, commission, cornmitt~!e or in an elected position? Yes- 
No X 
If yes, p l w e  give dotails, 

List other BomWCommissions on which you currently serve and have served and dates I m'Yd On thm Cound' of 
e hart of Lex-s F-il10-aresent 

Have you ever born convicted of B crime other than a minor traffic violation? Yes NO x 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 4County Council - Boards and Commissions - 10/29/2013
78



If yes, pleaac explain. 
Highest Level of Education: ' Bachelor of Wnce 

High School Graduate Ymt t i ~ m ~ ~  C m  HlOh GED Equivulent 

Degree Bachelor of Sdence In Hotel, Restaurant Tourism Management 

Do you have any interest in any business that has, is, or will do business with the County of Lexington or with 
the Board or Commission entity for which you ate applying? Yes x , , 

No- 
Ifyes, pl- pmvide details. I have w b u 4 l n ~  * CwnC dm-, they M a  u d  our w f w d i h n t  OWMU 

and fa over nlDN raom* 

lnitial &I undastand that my appointment to this ~oard/Co~.rnission may/wlll require some training 
andlor certification, and if selected to serve, I agree to give the rime n#wsary h r  such training andfor 
curtifiation. 

initial I undsntand that my attendance at all meeting8 is important. I h e ~ b y  tigee to attend all of 
the stated and called meetings of this entity to which I am begin cr,nsidend for appointment, and I further 
agree that I will resign my appointment should I miss: 
A. As per Section 2-133, Absences - 25 percent ofthe meetings within a oneyear period. The Council 

may, in its dIscretIon waive enforcement ofthis d o n  In the case or illness, death of a faml ly member, 
court appearance or other similar circumstance beyond the control of thc appointee. 

CERTIFICATION OF APPLICANT 

By signing below, applicant certifies that hlsher statements am he, accurate, and complete, and that 
he/she knows and agras that any rnisrepnsentatlon or omlssion ofthe hcts may result in hlsrher being 
disqualified or being diecharged should hdshe already be appolnttd by the County Council as their 
assignee, I understand that my application will be cansidered by Caunty Council and voted UJXM by 
Council. I further understand that if I am selected service, I will receive written confirmation by 
Council. 

At the County's dfscretion, the County andor its agents may conduct a criminal background check and 
that Mormation can be used for or against an appointment on a board/wmmission for Lexington County, 

Date 

Submitted by: 
New Appointee or Reappointee: 
Council Dirtrlct Number: 
Date: 

P k r r  a m  cdmpl~tld ram to! 
Labptma Cohnly Coundl 

I12 Boutb fake brlvq Sulw 601 
kxlngton, BC 29072 

Or FIU to t303-1856101 
For quatlonr erll llOL79S.OllN 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 4County Council - Boards and Commissions - 10/29/2013
79



Council\Meeting Schedules\November & December Meeting Schedule Memo 2013 

 

County of Lexington 
County Council 

212 South Lake Drive, Suite 601 

Lexington, South Carolina 29072 

TELEPHONE: (803) 785-8103 FAX: (803) 785-8101 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
  

TO: County Council  

 

FROM: Diana Burnett 

 

DATE: October 29, 2013 

 

RE: November & December 2013 Schedule 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

As the holidays are fast approaching, Council may want to review the scheduled meeting dates for 

the months of November and December.  At present Council is scheduled to meet November 12 

and 26 and December 10 and 24.  County offices will be closed on November 11 (Veteran’s Day), 

November 28 and 29 (Thanksgiving), December 24, 25, and 26 (Christmas). 

  

If Council wishes to make revisions to the November and December meeting schedule, it would be 

helpful to make a decision as soon as possible so that staff can plan accordingly. Of course, the 

Chairman can always call a special meeting if needed. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 3County Council - November and December 2013 Schedule - 10/29/2013
80



 

November 2013 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1 
 
 

2 
 
 

3 
 
 

4 
 
 

5 
 
 

6 
 
 

7 
 
 

8 
 
 

9 
 
 

10 
 
 

11 
Veterans Day Holiday 
Offices Closed 

12 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 

13 
 
 

14 
 
 

15 
 
 

16 
 
 

17 
 
 

18 
 
 

19 
 
 

20 
 
 

21 
 
 

22 
 
 

23 
 
 

24 
 
 

25 
 
 

26 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 

27 
 
 

28 
Thanksgiving Day 
Holiday - Offices 
Closed 

29 
Thanksgiving Holiday 
Offices Closed 

 

30 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 3County Council - November and December 2013 Schedule - 10/29/2013
81



 

December 2013 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 
 
 

2 
 
 

3 
 
 

4 
 
 

5 
 
 

6 
 
 

7 
 
 

8 
 
 

9 
 
 

10 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 

11 
 
 

12 
 
 

13 
 
 

14 
 
 

15 
 
 

16 
 
 

17 
 
 

18 
 
 

19 
 
 

20 
 
 

21 
 
 

22 
 
 

23 
 
 

24 
COUNCIL MEETING  
 
Christmas Holiday 
Offices Closed 

25 
Christmas Day 
Holiday – Offices 
Closed 

26 
Christmas Holiday 
Offices Closed  

27 
 
 

28 
 
 

29 
 
 

30 
 
 

31 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 3County Council - November and December 2013 Schedule - 10/29/2013
82

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text

JBUSBEE
Typewritten Text



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 
Procurement Services 
 

MEMORANDUM 

(O) 785-8319 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: October 18, 2013 

 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 

 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway 

  B14011-10/11/13S 

Public Works/Economic Development  
Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for the construction of the Chapin Technology 

Park Entrance Parkway. This project consists of providing all materials, equipment, and labor for 

excavation, grading, construction of a roadway and associated storm water systems and quality 

ponds of a Lexington County maintained parkway. A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on 

September 25, 2013 in which thirteen (13) contractors were represented. The County received 

five (5) responsive bids on October 16, 2013 (see attached Bid Tabulation). 
 

The bids were evaluated by Kyle Clampitt, P.E, Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.; Chuck 

Whipple, Director of Economic Development; Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works; J. 

Randy Edwards, County Engineer; and Angela M. Seymour, Procurement Officer. It is our 

recommendation to award this project to Coogler Construction, Inc. as the lowest bidder for a 

total amount, including all applicable taxes, of $1,331,791.00. 
 

Pending a Budget Amendment Resolution (BAR) which will be approved on October 29, 2013, 

funds will be appropriated in the following accounts: 

   Account Number   Account Description  Account Balance   Requisition Amount 

4521-181100-5AD650        Roadway Construction    $2,880,070.00  $1,003,720.00 

 Costs 
  
4516-181100-5AE442 UTC Roadway $328,146.00 $328,071.00    

 Construction Costs   

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
83



I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this bid be placed on 

County Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on October 29, 2013. 

 

copy: Randy Poston, Director of Finance 

 Kyle Clampitt, P.E, Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc 

 Chuck Whipple, Director of Economic Development 

 Wrenn Barrett, Director of Public Works 

 J. Randy Edwards, County Engineer 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
84



Bid Comparison Sheet
Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway

Lexington County, South Carolina

No. Quantity Unit Item Description Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total
1 1 LS Mobilization $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $49,680.00 $49,680.00 $78,000.00 $78,000.00
2 10.1 AC Clearing and Grubbing $3,200.00 $32,320.00 $3,834.00 $38,723.40 $4,150.00 $41,915.00
3 1 LS Earthwork $165,350.00 $165,350.00 $252,500.00 $252,500.00 $465,000.00 $465,000.00
4 500 CY Contingent Unsuitable Material Excavation $8.00 $4,000.00 $10.25 $5,125.00 $25.35 $12,675.00
5 200 Tons Contingent Maintenance Stone $35.00 $7,000.00 $30.60 $6,120.00 $36.00 $7,200.00
6 1,265 SY 4" Crusher-Run Surface Course $6.75 $8,538.75 $8.05 $10,183.25 $6.45 $8,159.25
7 11,575 SY Graded Aggregate Base Course (8" Uniform) $10.75 $124,431.25 $10.70 $123,852.50 $11.00 $127,325.00
8 1,700 Tons Hot Mix Asphalt Intermediate Course (Type B) $88.75 $150,875.00 $80.45 $136,765.00 $79.00 $134,300.00
9 880 Tons Hot Mix Asphalt Surface Course (Type B) $94.25 $82,940.00 $90.70 $79,816.00 $85.00 $74,800.00
10 11,575 SY Prime Coat $0.75 $8,681.25 $1.10 $12,732.50 $1.00 $11,575.00

11 1 LS Maintenance of Traffic $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $8,640.00 $8,640.00 $5,425.00 $5,425.00
12 23 LF 24" White Fast Dry Paint Stop Bar $16.25 $373.75 $3.25 $74.75 $3.30 $75.90
13 15 LF 24" White Fast Dry Paint Yield Line $20.00 $300.00 $4.90 $73.50 $3.30 $49.50
14 2,771 LF 4" White Fast Dry Paint Dashed Line $0.25 $692.75 $0.60 $1,662.60 $0.16 $443.36
15 8 EA White Fast Dry Paint Symbols $175.00 $1,400.00 $54.00 $432.00 $55.00 $440.00

16 214 SY
Imprinted Aggregate Reinforced Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement 
Marking System $160.00 $34,240.00 $145.80 $31,201.20 $160.00 $34,240.00

17 248 SF Preformed Thermoplastic Detectable Warning Material $20.00 $4,960.00 $5.40 $1,339.20 $33.30 $8,258.40
18 768 LF 15" Smooth Wall Pipe $25.75 $19,776.00 $29.75 $22,848.00 $20.00 $15,360.00
19 85 LF 18" Smooth Wall Pipe $29.00 $2,465.00 $31.80 $2,703.00 $22.00 $1,870.00
20 1,100 LF 24" Smooth Wall Pipe $40.75 $44,825.00 $38.90 $42,790.00 $35.00 $38,500.00
21 100 LF 30" Smooth Wall Pipe $56.75 $5,675.00 $64.50 $6,450.00 $57.00 $5,700.00
22 50 LF 36" Smooth Wall Pipe $69.75 $3,487.50 $79.00 $3,950.00 $56.00 $2,800.00
23 133 LF 42" Smooth Wall Pipe $98.00 $13,034.00 $97.50 $12,967.50 $88.00 $11,704.00
24 2,213 LF Joint Utility Duct Bank (JUDB) - Excavation/Trenching $16.25 $35,961.25 $12.95 $28,658.35 $22.00 $48,686.00
25 2,213 LF JUDB-Duct Bank System $41.00 $90,733.00 $36.75 $81,327.75 $27.00 $59,751.00
26 32 EA JUDB-Utility Handholds $995.00 $31,840.00 $1,855.50 $59,376.00 $1,900.00 $60,800.00
27 204 CY JUDB-Flowable Fill $85.00 $17,340.00 $105.85 $21,593.40 $195.00 $39,780.00
28 18 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Lighting $505.00 $9,090.00 $1,069.25 $19,246.50 $700.00 $12,600.00
29 1 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Traffic Controls $525.00 $525.00 $1,836.00 $1,836.00 $2,550.00 $2,550.00
30 1 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Power $525.00 $525.00 $1,782.00 $1,782.00 $2,525.00 $2,525.00
31 3 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Spare $525.00 $1,575.00 $648.00 $1,944.00 $1,600.00 $4,800.00
32 100 LF 16" Steel Casing Pipe $51.00 $5,100.00 $47.20 $4,720.00 $55.00 $5,500.00
33 80 LF 30" Steel Casing Pipe $114.00 $9,120.00 $99.50 $7,960.00 $115.00 $9,200.00
34 7 EA Catch Basin $1,850.00 $12,950.00 $2,085.50 $14,598.50 $1,700.00 $11,900.00
35 8 EA Type II Catch Basin $1,950.00 $15,600.00 $2,268.00 $18,144.00 $1,800.00 $14,400.00
36 1 EA Yard Inlet $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,647.00 $1,647.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00
37 1 EA Junction Box $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,591.00 $3,591.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00
38 20 EA Concrete Handicap Ramp $1,000.00 $20,000.00 $756.00 $15,120.00 $550.00 $11,000.00
39 9,044 LF Concrete Curb and Gutter $10.00 $90,440.00 $8.90 $80,491.60 $8.80 $79,587.20
40 4,375 LF Concrete 6' Sidewalk $22.00 $96,250.00 $29.15 $127,531.25 $31.00 $135,625.00
41 218 LF Concrete key $27.00 $5,886.00 $12.95 $2,823.10 $11.00 $2,398.00
42 159 SF Unit Pavers $30.00 $4,770.00 $20.50 $3,259.50 $13.20 $2,098.80
43 2 EA Concrete Flared End Section $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,414.80 $2,829.60 $1,300.00 $2,600.00
44 2 EA Concrete Endwall $1,750.00 $3,500.00 $1,512.00 $3,024.00 $2,750.00 $5,500.00
45 2 EA Concrete Headwall $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $5,050.00 $10,100.00 $2,550.00 $5,100.00
46 100 LF Contingent Pipe Underdrain $25.00 $2,500.00 $18.35 $1,835.00 $15.00 $1,500.00
47 790 LF 4-Inch PVC Conduit, Schedule-40 $12.00 $9,480.00 $9.85 $7,781.50 $9.15 $7,228.50
48 108 LF 6-Inch PCV Conduit, Schedule-40 $14.00 $1,512.00 $10.80 $1,166.40 $25.00 $2,700.00
49 40 Tons Rip Rap (Class B) $60.00 $2,400.00 $45.50 $1,820.00 $74.00 $2,960.00
50 86 SY Geotextile for Erosion Control Under Rip Rap Class II (Type B) $3.00 $258.00 $2.00 $172.00 $2.00 $172.00
51 3,980 LF Silt Fence $3.75 $14,925.00 $2.15 $8,557.00 $2.70 $10,746.00
52 16 EA Inlet Protection $250.00 $4,000.00 $270.00 $4,320.00 $165.00 $2,640.00
53 1 EA Construction Entrance $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $6,264.00 $6,264.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00
54 15,495 SY Slope Stabilization $2.50 $38,737.50 $1.50 $23,242.50 $1.50 $23,242.50
55 1,000 SY Contingent Slope Stabilization $3.00 $3,000.00 $1.50 $1,500.00 $1.50 $1,500.00
56 6.88 AC Temporary Grassing $1,600.00 $11,008.00 $1,350.00 $9,288.00 $1,330.00 $9,150.40
57 1 LS Erosion Control Maintenance $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $8,100.00 $8,100.00 $7,550.00 $7,550.00
58 1 EA Permanent Water Quality Basin $32,500.00 $32,500.00 $24,760.00 $24,760.00 $31,500.00 $31,500.00
59 1 EA Temporary Water Quality Basin $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $26,550.00 $26,550.00 $30,400.00 $30,400.00

1 Coogler Construction, Inc. submitted a total bid amount of $1,331,866.00. An error was found on line item 14.  Line item 14; the unit price was 
quoted as $.25 for 2,771 units for a total of $767.75.  The total for line item 3 should read $692.75. This error reflects a decrease of $75.00 in 
the submitted bid total.  The corrected bid total for Coogler Construction, Inc. is $1,331,791.00.  This error does not affect the ranking of the 
bids.

3 Sloan Construction Company submitted a total bid amount of $2,049,549.60.  An error was found on the Total Base Bid Amount.  The Base Bid 
was quoted at $2,049,549.60.  The Total Base Bid Amount should read $2,051,549.60.  This error reflects an increase in $2,000.00.  This error 
does not affect the ranking of the bids.

McClam & Associates, Inc. submitted a total bid amount of $1,478,664.35. An error was found on line item 18.  Line item 18; the unit price was 
quoted as $29.75 for 768 units for a total of $13,923.00.  The total for line item 18 should read $22,848.00. This error reflects an increase of 
$8,925.00 in the submitted bid total.  The corrected bid total for McClam & Associates, Inc. is $1,487,589.35.  This error does not affect the 
ranking of the bids.

2

$1,738,805.81

C.R. Jackson, Inc.

Total Base Bid Amount $1,487,589.35

McClam & Associates, Inc. 2Coogler Construction, Inc. 1

$1,331,791.00

Project No.:  13176-0032
October 17, 2013 - Page 1 of 2 Prepared By: Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
85



Bid Comparison Sheet
Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway

Lexington County, South Carolina

    

No. Quantity Unit Item Description Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total
1 1 LS Mobilization $91,402.22 $91,402.22 $170,000.00 $170,000.00
2 10.1 AC Clearing and Grubbing $3,851.90 $38,904.19 $7,500.00 $75,750.00
3 1 LS Earthwork $535,356.76 $535,356.76 $490,000.00 $490,000.00
4 500 CY Contingent Unsuitable Material Excavation $34.76 $17,380.00 $20.00 $10,000.00
5 200 Tons Contingent Maintenance Stone $30.82 $6,164.00 $25.00 $5,000.00
6 1,265 SY 4" Crusher-Run Surface Course $6.32 $7,994.80 $7.20 $9,108.00
7 11,575 SY Graded Aggregate Base Course (8" Uniform) $11.16 $129,177.00 $12.60 $145,845.00
8 1,700 Tons Hot Mix Asphalt Intermediate Course (Type B) $74.90 $127,330.00 $70.00 $119,000.00
9 880 Tons Hot Mix Asphalt Surface Course (Type B) $89.88 $79,094.40 $84.00 $73,920.00
10 11,575 SY Prime Coat $1.07 $12,385.25 $1.00 $11,575.00

11 1 LS Maintenance of Traffic $3,881.76 $3,881.76 $3,125.00 $3,125.00
12 23 LF 24" White Fast Dry Paint Stop Bar $3.21 $73.83 $7.00 $161.00
13 15 LF 24" White Fast Dry Paint Yield Line $4.81 $72.15 $7.00 $105.00
14 2,771 LF 4" White Fast Dry Paint Dashed Line $0.57 $1,579.47 $0.40 $1,108.40
15 8 EA White Fast Dry Paint Symbols $53.50 $428.00 $70.00 $560.00

16 214 SY
Imprinted Aggregate Reinforced Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement 
Marking System $144.45 $30,912.30 $145.00 $31,030.00

17 248 SF Preformed Thermoplastic Detectable Warning Material $5.35 $1,326.80 $5.50 $1,364.00
18 768 LF 15" Smooth Wall Pipe $26.44 $20,305.92 $65.70 $50,457.60
19 85 LF 18" Smooth Wall Pipe $28.21 $2,397.85 $67.00 $5,695.00
20 1,100 LF 24" Smooth Wall Pipe $35.81 $39,391.00 $72.40 $79,640.00
21 100 LF 30" Smooth Wall Pipe $48.60 $4,860.00 $81.25 $8,125.00
22 50 LF 36" Smooth Wall Pipe $63.16 $3,158.00 $91.40 $4,570.00
23 133 LF 42" Smooth Wall Pipe $95.14 $12,653.62 $137.50 $18,287.50
24 2,213 LF Joint Utility Duct Bank (JUDB) - Excavation/Trenching $34.24 $75,773.12 $36.50 $80,774.50
25 2,213 LF JUDB-Duct Bank System $34.77 $76,946.01 $66.70 $147,607.10
26 32 EA JUDB-Utility Handholds $1,497.96 $47,934.72 $917.00 $29,344.00
27 204 CY JUDB-Flowable Fill $243.69 $49,712.76 $115.00 $23,460.00
28 18 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Lighting $1,176.97 $21,185.46 $1,300.00 $23,400.00
29 1 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Traffic Controls $3,566.22 $3,566.22 $4,500.00 $4,500.00
30 1 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Power $5,595.95 $5,595.95 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
31 3 EA Electrical Sleeving (SLV) - Spare $1,457.30 $4,371.90 $2,250.00 $6,750.00
32 100 LF 16" Steel Casing Pipe $62.94 $6,294.00 $90.25 $9,025.00
33 80 LF 30" Steel Casing Pipe $128.15 $10,252.00 $145.50 $11,640.00
34 7 EA Catch Basin $1,626.79 $11,387.53 $3,230.00 $22,610.00
35 8 EA Type II Catch Basin $1,626.79 $13,014.32 $3,960.00 $31,680.00
36 1 EA Yard Inlet $1,113.25 $1,113.25 $3,125.00 $3,125.00
37 1 EA Junction Box $1,339.94 $1,339.94 $2,605.00 $2,605.00
38 20 EA Concrete Handicap Ramp $909.48 $18,189.60 $885.00 $17,700.00
39 9,044 LF Concrete Curb and Gutter $9.26 $83,747.44 $9.00 $81,396.00
40 4,375 LF Concrete 6' Sidewalk $18.56 $81,200.00 $18.10 $79,187.50
41 218 LF Concrete key $19.63 $4,279.34 $9.50 $2,071.00
42 159 SF Unit Pavers $54.91 $8,730.69 $15.70 $2,496.30
43 2 EA Concrete Flared End Section $1,678.11 $3,356.22 $1,770.00 $3,540.00
44 2 EA Concrete Endwall $1,542.49 $3,084.98 $1,875.00 $3,750.00
45 2 EA Concrete Headwall $3,183.64 $6,367.28 $2,030.00 $4,060.00
46 100 LF Contingent Pipe Underdrain $24.92 $2,492.00 $30.00 $3,000.00
47 790 LF 4-Inch PVC Conduit, Schedule-40 $13.56 $10,712.40 $18.75 $14,812.50
48 108 LF 6-Inch PCV Conduit, Schedule-40 $40.12 $4,332.96 $21.90 $2,365.20
49 40 Tons Rip Rap (Class B) $57.76 $2,310.40 $87.00 $3,480.00
50 86 SY Geotextile for Erosion Control Under Rip Rap Class II (Type B) $6.82 $586.52 $3.00 $258.00
51 3,980 LF Silt Fence $3.34 $13,293.20 $4.50 $17,910.00
52 16 EA Inlet Protection $252.20 $4,035.20 $600.00 $9,600.00
53 1 EA Construction Entrance $3,105.18 $3,105.18 $10,200.00 $10,200.00
54 15,495 SY Slope Stabilization $1.39 $21,538.05 $1.60 $24,792.00
55 1,000 SY Contingent Slope Stabilization $1.39 $1,390.00 $1.60 $1,600.00
56 6.88 AC Temporary Grassing $855.98 $5,889.14 $1,800.00 $12,384.00
57 1 LS Erosion Control Maintenance $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00
58 1 EA Permanent Water Quality Basin $47,915.09 $47,915.09 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
59 1 EA Temporary Water Quality Basin $16,772.10 $16,772.10 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

1

2

3 Sloan Construction Company submitted a total bid amount of $2,049,549.60.  An error was found on the Total Base Bid 
Amount.  The Base Bid was quoted at $2,049,549.60.  The Total Base Bid Amount should read $2,051,549.60.  This error 
reflects an increase in $2,000.00.  This error does not affect the ranking of the bids.

Total Base Bid Amount $2,051,549.60$1,848,044.29

Coogler Construction, Inc. submitted a total bid amount of $1,331,866.00. An error was found on line item 14.  Line item 14; the
unit price was quoted as $.25 for 2,771 units for a total of $767.75.  The total for line item 3 should read $692.75. This error 
reflects a decrease of $75.00 in the submitted bid total.  The corrected bid total for Coogler Construction, Inc. is $1,331,791.00. 
This error does not affect the ranking of the bids.

McClam & Associates, Inc. submitted a total bid amount of $1,478,664.35.  An error was found on line item 18.  Line item 18; 
the unit price was quoted as $29.75 for 768 units for a total of $13,923.00.  The total for line item 18 should read $22,848.00.  
This error reflects an increase of $8,925.00 in the submitted bid total.  The corrected bid total for McClam & Associates, Inc. is 
$1, 487,589.35.  This error does not affect the ranking of the bids.

J.C. Wilkie Construction, LLC

Sloan Construction Company 
3

Project No.:  13176-0032
October 17, 2013 - Page 2 of 2 Prepared By: Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
86



10/24/2013   Page 5 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
87



10/24/2013   Page 6 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
88



10/24/2013   Page 7 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
89



10/24/2013   Page 8 of 8Procurement - Chapin Technology Park Entrance Parkway - Public Works - 10/29/2013
90



 
 

 
 1 

FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM FOR THE LEXINGTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 

Evaluation Committee Report and Recommendation 

Request for Proposal No. P14001-09/09/13S 

 

 

 

 

 

October 9, 2013 

 

 

PURPOSE 

The County of Lexington solicited competitive sealed proposals from potential correctional food service 

providers to establish a contract for providing food service to the inmate population for the Lexington 

County Sheriff's Department (LCSD) in the most cost effective manner possible.  The term of this 

contract will be for three (3) years with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year periods. 

 

Currently, our food service facility operates under the direction of a contractor to provide meals to an 

average of 750 inmates.  The importance of food service in a correctional facility cannot be overstated.  

Food assumes a greater importance to an inmate than those free in the community.  It is our intention to 

maintain a high quality food program and provide responsive management daily through contracting with 

a firm that specializes in correctional food service management. LCSD will continue to provide labor to 

supplement the contractor’s staff in varying and fluctuating quantities, except during lock down or other 

emergencies.  All menus and special diets are required to meet the standards for adult holding and 

detention facilities as established by the American Correctional Association (ACA).  All meals served 

will be in compliance with the Recommended Daily Allowance for adult males and females as established 

by the National Academy of Sciences.  The contractor will provide a daily 2900 calorie/4 week cycle 

menu, which will establish a consistency in the quality and quantity of food served.  The operation will 

meet all guidelines as prescribed by the ACA.  The contractor will be responsible for the ordering and 

payment of all food and supplies required.   

 

EVALUATION COMMITTEE 

As required by the County's Purchasing Ordinance and Request for Proposal (RFP) Criteria, an evaluation 

committee was appointed by the County Administrator, Joe G. Mergo, III, to evaluate and review the 

proposals and ultimately report its recommendation to County Council for their consideration.  

Committee members were Major Kevin Jones, Captain Mark Joyner, Sergeant Melissa Lyons, Lieutenant 

Cain Mayrant, Sylvia Dillon of the Sheriff’s Department, and Angela Seymour, Procurement Officer. 

 

SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS 

The required legal advertisements soliciting sealed, competitive proposals from qualified firms were 

placed and appeared on August 2, 2013 in the South Carolina Business Opportunities Publication, 

DemandStar, and the County’s website. Notification of the RFP was also mailed to firms on the County’s 

vendor list. 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 3Procurement - Food Service Program for the Lexington County Detention Center - Sheriff's Department - 10/29/2013
91



 
 

 
 2 

The RFP process required all interested firms to attend a mandatory pre-proposal conference on August 

16, 2013, at which time four (4) firms attended.  The conference included a review of the RFP document, 

its detailed requirements, discussion of the County's current operations, and the content of the food 

service program proposal for the inmate population of the detention center.  

 

Proposals were due and received at 5:00 p.m. on September 9, 2013. At that time, the County received 

proposals from two (2) firms: 

 

ABL Management, Inc. 

Trinity Services Group, Inc. 

 

EVALUATION PROCESS 

On September 10, 2013, the Evaluation Committee began its evaluation process.  Copies of the proposals 

were distributed to each committee member for his/her individual evaluation.  The committee met again 

on October 1, 2013 for a detailed discussion of their individual evaluations of the proposal and respective 

scoring of each criteria factor. 

 

Each proposal under consideration was evaluated and scored on the five (5) specific criteria areas as 

indicated in the RFP.  The factors listed in the order of their relative importance were as follows:  (1) 

Corporate experience in providing correctional food service operations; (2) Offeror's understanding of the 

project requirements and ability to clearly describe how their proposed program will meet the 

requirements of the County; (3) Corporate capability; (4) Total cost/basis of fees charged; and (5) 

References. 

 

The outcome of the tabulated scores during that meeting resulted in a unanimous recommendation to 

enter into negotiations with Trinity Services Group, Inc. as presenting the most favorable food service for 

the inmates and staff.  Negotiations were entered in between the vendor and the County on October 4, 

2013. The outcome from that meeting was for the vendor to revise their scope of work and consequent 

price.  

 

PROPOSED COST 

The cost proposal submitted by Trinity Services Group, Inc. for a contract period of two years is as 

follows: 

 

Projected Annual Projected Daily    

Term per Year Cost Cost    

 

First Contract Year $917,946.00 $2,578.50 (Cost based on 750 meals 3 x day) 

 

Second and Third Contract Years $941,117.50 $2,643.75 (Cost based on 750 meals 3 x day) 

 

The projected annual cost of the first contract year is within the 2013/2014 budget.  The Sheriff’s 

Department currently has $1,403,662.00 budgeted. 

 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 3Procurement - Food Service Program for the Lexington County Detention Center - Sheriff's Department - 10/29/2013
92



 
 

 
 3 

The price per meal is based on a sliding scale depending upon the average daily population (ADP). Total 

meals indicated above include 55 inmate workers per day. The price scale that would most affect our 

contract cost is as follows: 

 

COST PER MEAL  

ADP  Inmate Inmate Worker 

 

551 – 650  $1.220  $1.487 

651 - 751  $1.146  $1.413 

751 - 800  $1.076  $1.344   

800 - 850  $1.065  $1.332   

851 - 900  $1.052  $1.319  

901 - 950  $1.038  $1.305 

951 - 1000  $1.026  $1.294 

1001 – 1050  $1.015  $1.283  

 

Inmate workers are served a portion and a half.  All prices include sales tax. 

 

The cost is based on the ADP of inmates.  If the ADP increases or decreases during the month, the cost will 

be adjusted according to the per diem pricing listed above.  The cost for years four and five may be increased 

in the amount equivalent to the percentage change in the U. S. Department of Labor Consumer Price Index, 

Southeastern Region, for the previous calendar year (December-December). 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The evaluation committee feels that in order to ensure that Lexington County continues to provide food 

services that are in compliance with the American Correctional Association and the National Sheriff's 

Association, it would be in the best interest of the County to award the contract for the food service 

operation at the detention center to Trinity Services Group, Inc. as the highest rated offeror.  The new 

contract will begin January 1, 2014. 

 

The committee hereby submits this recommendation for Council’s consideration and approval.  We further 

recommend that this proposal be placed on County Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on 

October 29, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Angela M. Seymour     Jeffrey A. Hyde, CPPB     

Procurement Officer     Procurement Manager      

 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 3Procurement - Food Service Program for the Lexington County Detention Center - Sheriff's Department - 10/29/2013
93



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

Procurement Services 

 

MEMORANDUM 

(O) 803- 785-8319 

(F) 803- 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: October 16, 2013 

 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 

 

THRU: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

 FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: Request for Approval to Utilize the Competitive Sealed Qualifications   

  Process for Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice  
We are requesting the use of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process in order to seek 

competitive proposals from potential qualified respondents for analysis of impediments to fair 

housing choice for Community Development. The Procurement Office in coordination with this 

department feels that it would be in the best interest of the County to request proposals from 

outside sources. 

 

Due to the scope of this project, we feel that it would not be practical or to our advantage to 

prepare a comprehensive set of specifications that may limit our resources or restrict 

competition.  In selecting a contracted vendor, it will be advantageous to consider award criteria 

other than cost.  Proposals shall be reviewed and evaluated by a review panel based upon 

specific evaluation factors such as experience of the firm, personnel assigned to the project, 

familiarity with applicable local, state, and federal laws, knowledge of local issues, references, 

overall responsiveness to this RFQ, and ability to satisfy HUD’s requirements with submittal 

deadlines. 

 

It is therefore our recommendation to utilize the competitive sealed proposal procedure 

established in the County ordinance.  We further recommend that we seek approval at the next 

scheduled County Council meeting set for October 29, 2013. 

 

copy: Randolph C. Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Ron Scott, Director of Community Development 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 1Procurement - Request for Approval to Utilize the Competitive Sealed Qualifications Process for Analysis of Impediments to Fair...
94



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 

Procurement Services 

 

MEMORANDUM 

(O) 785-8319 

(F) 785-2240 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: October 14, 2013 

 

TO:  Joe G. Mergo, III 

  County Administrator 

 

THROUGH: Jeffrey A. Hyde 

  Procurement Manager 

 

FROM: Angela M. Seymour 

  Procurement Officer 

 

SUBJECT: Security Guard Services - Term Contract    

  C14011-10/07/13S 

  Library 

Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for a term contract for security guard services for 

the Cayce/West Columbia Library. The County received three (3) bids on October 7, 2013 (see 

attached bid tabulation).  

 

The bids were evaluated by Denise Bedenbaugh, Director of Public Library System; and Angela 

M. Seymour, Procurement Officer.  It is our recommendation to award this solicitation to the 

lowest responsive bidder, Defender Services, Inc. The annual cost of this contract is estimated at 

$36,670.40, including applicable sales tax. 

 

The duration of this term contract will be for the initial period of one (1) year with the option to 

extend the contract for four (4) additional one (1) year periods, if deemed to be in the best 

interest of the County.   

 

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this bid be placed on 

County Council’s agenda for their next scheduled meeting on October 29, 2013. 

 

copy: Randy Poston, Chief Financial Officer 

 Denise Bedenbaugh, Director of Public Library System 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 2Procurement - Security Guard Services (Term Contract) - Library - 10/29/2013
95



BID # : C14011-10/07/13S

Security Guard Services - Term Contract

Item Qty U/M Description Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost Unit Total Total Cost

1 53.75 HR

Security Guard Services for Cayce-

West Columbia Library 13.12$              705.20$               14.50$              779.38$               15.12$              812.70$               

Yearly Cost (52 Weeks) 36,670.40$          40,527.50$          42,260.40$          

Bids Received: October 10, 2013 @ 3:00 PM E.S.T.

Angela M. Seymour

Procurement Officer

County of Lexington

Bid Tabulation

 Defender Services, Inc. 

 American Security of Greenville, 

LLC.  Allied Barton Security 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 2Procurement - Security Guard Services (Term Contract) - Library - 10/29/2013
96



**This page intentionally left blank**

97



1 
 

 

 

ORDINANCE  13-09 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT 
TO FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN RNDC 
SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC, RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC AND 
LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA WHEREBY THE COUNTY WILL COVENANT 
TO ACCEPT CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES WITH RESPECT TO 
CERTAIN PROPERTY AND MAKE AVAILABLE TO RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC AND 
RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC OTHER ECONOMIC BENEFITS AND 
INCENTIVES AND SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE ADDED TO THE JOINT PARK WITH 
CALHOUN COUNTY.   

           WHEREAS, Lexington County, South Carolina (the “County”), entered into a 
Fee in Lieu of Tax arrangement pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Act”) with RNDC South Carolina, LLC and RNDC South 
Carolina RE Holdings, LLC (collectively, the “Company”) in connection with which the County 
and the Company entered into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement dated as of 
February 23, 2010 (the “2010 Fee Agreement”) concerning the project; and, 

  WHEREAS, the Company contemplates increasing its initial promised minimum 
investment of $11,850,000, of which must consist of a real estate investment of not less than 
$7,150,000, by making an additional investment of a minimum of $17,195,000, of which, 
$5,600,000 will be in real estate and improvements and by creating fifty-four (54) new, full-time 
jobs; and, 

  WHEREAS, the Lexington County Council (“County Council”) having found 
that the additional investment and jobs will serve the County and assist the County in its 
economic development efforts and, contingent on such investment and jobs, has agreed to amend 
the 2010 Fee Agreement to extend the investment period for the project under the 2010 Fee 
Agreement by five (5) years; and, 

  WHEREAS, in order to make the additional investment, the Company has 
requested to add additional property to the Joint Park with Calhoun County; and, 

  WHEREAS, the County Council has cause to be prepared and presented to this 
meeting the form of the First Amendment to the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement 
between the County and the Company, which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and, 

  WHEREAS, it appears that the document above referred to is now before this 
meeting, is in appropriate form, and is an appropriate document to be executed and delivered by 
the County for the purposes intended; and, 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Lexington County Council in 
meeting duly assembled as follows: 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
98



2 
 

Section 1.  the County finds that the form, terms and provisions of the First 
Amendment to the Fee in Lieu of Tax Incentive Agreement which is before this meeting and 
filed with the Clerk to County Council is hereby approved and all the terms, provisions, and 
conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Amended Fee Agreement 
was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair of County Council and the Clerk to 
County Council be and they are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Amended Fee 
Agreement to the Company.  The Amended Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form 
now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall be approved 
by the officials of the County executing the Agreement, their execution thereof to constitute 
conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions thereof from the former 
amended Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 
 

Section 2.   The property set forth and attached hereto in Exhibit A is hereby added 
to the Joint Park with Calhoun County. 
 

Section 3.   The consummation of all transactions contemplated by the Amended 
Fee Agreement is hereby approved. 

 
Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 

the laws of the State of South Carolina. 
 

Section 5. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable, 
and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the Sections, phrases and provisions hereunder. 

 
Section 6.  All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof  are, to the extent of 

such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage and approval. 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
99



3 
 

 

  

 DONE, RATIFIED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ___________, 2013. 

     LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

  ________________________________________ 
 William B. Banning, Sr., 
 Chair of Lexington County Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:________________________________ 

Diana W. Burnett 
Clerk to Lexington County Council 
 

First Reading: ________________________     
Second Reading: ______________________  
Public Hearing: _______________________  
Third Reading:  _______________________  
Filed W/ Clerk of Court _________________  
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
100



 

   

FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”) is made 
and entered into as of ___________, 2013, by and between LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council (the “County Council”) as 
governing body of the County, and RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC (“RNDCSC”), a 
Delaware limited liability company, and RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC 
(“RE Holdings”), a South Carolina limited liability company (RNDCSC and RE Holdings are 
collectively, the “Sponsors”). 

 
WHEREAS, the County entered into a Fee in Lieu of Tax arrangement pursuant to Title 

12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Act”) with the 
Sponsors in connection with which the County and the Sponsors entered into a Fee in Lieu of 
Tax and Incentive Agreement dated as of February 23, 2010 (the “2010 Fee Agreement”) 
concerning the project;  

 
WHEREAS, the Sponsors contemplate increasing the initial promised minimum 

investment of $11,850,000, which must consist of a real estate investment of not less than 
$7,150,000, by making an additional investment of a minimum of $17,195,000, of which, 
$5,600,000 will be in real estate and improvements, and by creating fifty-four (54) new, full-time 
jobs; 

 
WHEREAS, in order to make the additional investment, the Sponsors desire to add 

additional property to the Joint Park with Calhoun County; 
 
WHEREAS, the County has agreed to extend the investment period for the project under 

the 2010 Fee Agreement by five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and the Sponsors desire to enter into this Amendment to amend 

the 2010 Fee Agreement as described above. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION  of the respective 

representations and agreements hereinafter contained and other value, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

 
1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein by this reference; provided, however, that such recitals shall not be deemed to modify the 
express provisions hereinafter set forth. 

2. Section 1.3.  The defined term “Investment Period” contained in Section 1.3 of 
the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that economic 
development property is purchased or acquired and ending on the last day of the tenth 
(10th) property tax year following the Commencement Date, subject to an extension for 
such period as provided in Section 3.2(b) hereof. 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
101



 

   

3. Section 3.3(f).  Section 3.3(f) of the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

In accordance with an as required by Section 12-44-40(F) of the Act, the Sponsors 
commit to the Project with a cumulative minimum investment of $29,009,000.00, which 
shall be made up of at least $12,750,000.00 in Real Estate and improvements and is 
subject to Section 5.4 of this Agreement. 

4. Section 5.4.  Section 5.4 of the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

SECTION 5.4.  Minimum Investment; Failure to Maintain Minimum Investment. 

(a)  The Sponsors shall invest a cumulative minimum investment of 
$11,850,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) in the Project by the end of the first five 
(5) years of the Investment Period and any extensions granted pursuant to Section 3.2(b) 
of this Agreement which must consist of a Real Estate investment of not less than 
$7,150,000.00 (collectively, the “Initial Investment”). 

 
 (b) In the event the Real Estate portion of the Initial Investment does 
not reach a level of $7,150,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the first five 
(5) years of the Investment Period and any extensions, then this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate with respect to the Initial Investment and each Sponsor shall pay the County an 
additional amount equal (if any) to that Sponsor's total savings from the time the first 
Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes was made to that point (that is, the difference between the fee 
amount paid by each Sponsor and the amount which would have been otherwise due in 
case of normal property taxes with all applicable exemptions).  Subject to Section 5.2(a), 
this Fee Agreement shall not terminate with respect to the Real Estate invested in the 
Project as part of the Initial Investment, so long as there is a Real Estate investment of at 
least $7,150,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the first five (5) years of the 
Investment Period and any extensions.  

 
(c) In the event the Sponsors fail to reach the cumulative minimum Initial 

Investment of $11,850,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the first five (5) 
years of the Investment Period and any extensions, or fail to maintain the cumulative 
minimum Initial Investment of $11,850,000.00 for the remainder of the term of this Fee 
Agreement, and provided that at such time the Equipment invested in the Project as part 
of the Initial Investment has not reached a level of $4,700,000.00, then this Fee 
Agreement shall terminate with respect to the Equipment invested (but not the Real 
Estate invested) in the Project as part of the Initial Investment and the 
Sponsor(s) investing the Equipment shall pay the County an additional amount equal (if 
any) to such Sponsor(s)’ total savings with regard to its/their investment in the 
Equipment for the Project from the time the first Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes was made to 
that point (that is, the difference between the fee amount paid by such Sponsor(s) and the 
amount which would have been otherwise due in case of normal property taxes with all 
applicable exemptions).  

 

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
102



 

   

(d)  In addition to the Initial Investment to be made as provided in subsections (a), 
(b) and (c) of this Section, the Sponsors shall invest a cumulative minimum investment of 
$17,195,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) in the Project by the end of the 
Investment Period and any extensions granted pursuant to Section 3.2(b) of this 
Agreement, which must consist of a Real Estate investment of not less than 
$5,600,000.00 (collectively, the “Expansion Investment”).   

 
(e)  In addition to the Initial Investment and the Expansion Investment, the 

Sponsors must also create a minimum of fifty-four (54) new, full-time jobs during the 
Investment Period such that the total number of full-time employees working for the 
Sponsors at the site located on the Real Property is three hundred forty-nine (349) (the 
“Labor Investment”). 

 
 (f) In the event that: (i) the Expansion Investment does not reach a cumulative 
minimum investment of $17,195,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the 
Investment Period and any extensions; or (ii) the Sponsors fail to make the required 
Labor Investment during the Investment Period, then this Fee Agreement shall terminate 
with respect to the Real Estate and Equipment invested in the Project as part of the 
Expansion Investment and the Sponsor(s) investing such Real Estate and Equipment shall 
pay the County an additional amount equal (if any) to such Sponsor(s)’ total savings with 
regard to its/their investment in the Real Estate and Equipment for the Project as part of 
the Expansion Investment from the time the first Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes was made to 
that point (that is, the difference between the fee amount paid by such Sponsor(s) and the 
amount which would have been otherwise due in case of normal property taxes with all 
applicable exemptions). 

 
(g)  In the event that: (i) the Sponsors fail to maintain the Expansion Investment 

at a cumulative minimum investment of $17,195,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) 
for the remainder of the term of this Fee Agreement after the end of the Investment 
Period and any extensions; or (ii) the Sponsors fail to maintain the required Labor 
Investment for the remainder of the term of this Fee Agreement after the end of the 
Investment Period and any extensions ((i) and (ii) are each a “Maintenance Failure”), 
then this Fee Agreement shall terminate as of the date of the Maintenance Failure with 
respect to the Real Estate and Equipment invested in the Project as part of the Expansion 
Investment.  Beginning on the date of the Maintenance Failure, the Sponsors shall pay ad 
valorem property taxes for the Real Estate and Equipment invested in the Project as part 
of the Expansion Investment; however, a Maintenance Failure shall not require the 
Sponsor(s) to pay an additional amount equal to such Sponsor(s)’ total savings with 
regard to its/their investment in the Real Estate and Equipment for the Project as part of 
the Expansion Investment. 
 
5. Exhibit A.  Exhibit A to the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety 

and replaced with Exhibit A attached to this Amendment. 

6. Initial Investment Met; Expansion and Labor Investments Prospective.  The 
County hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Sponsors have met the cumulative minimum 
Initial Investment as of the date of this Amendment.  Exhibit B attached to this Amendment 

10/24/2013   Page 6 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
103



 

   

shows the amounts that have been made to date as part of the Initial Investment.  The Sponsors 
and the County agree that none of the investments shown on Exhibit B as part of the Initial 
Investment shall count toward the Expansion Investment.  All investments made as part of the 
Expansion Investment and Labor Investment shall be made after the date of this Amendment. 

7. Multi-County Industrial and Business Park.  As provided in the 2010 Fee 
Agreement, the County has, with the appropriate consent of Lexington County Council and 
Calhoun County Council, amended an existing multi-county industrial and business park 
agreement (the “Multi-County Industrial and Business Park Agreement”) to include Parcel 1 as 
described on Exhibit A attached to this Amendment in such Multi-County Industrial and 
Business Park between the County and the County of Calhoun (the “Multi-County Park”),  
pursuant to Section 13 of Article VIII of the South Carolina Constitution and Section 4-1-170, 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.  In connection with this Amendment, the 
County has agreed, with the appropriate consent of Lexington County Council and Calhoun 
County Council, to further amend the Multi-County Industrial and Business Park Agreement to 
include Parcel 2 as shown on Exhibit A attached to this Amendment in such Multi-County Park,  
and to undertake and execute those procedures, instruments, ordinances, resolutions and 
documents as may be reasonably required to accomplish same. 

8. Notice to Department of Revenue.  The County agrees to cooperate with the 
Sponsors by filing a copy of this Amendment with the South Carolina Department of Revenue 
within thirty (30) days of the execution hereof by the County.  

9. Ratification and Confirmation.  The parties hereby ratify the 2010 Fee Agreement 
as amended by this Amendment, which represents the entire agreement of the parties. 

10. Legal Effect.  Except as modified herein, the 2010 Fee Agreement remains 
unchanged and in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions stated therein. 

11. Counterparts; Facsimile and Electronic Versions.  This document may be 
executed simultaneously or in separate counterparts, and any of the parties to this document may 
execute it by signing counterpart signature pages, all of which taken together shall constitute one 
and the same document.  Signatures transmitted by facsimile or as emailed PDF or other similar 
electronic version shall be binding as originals, and hereby waive any defenses to the 
enforcement of the terms of this document based upon the form of signature.  If facsimile 
signatures or emailed PDF or other electronic copies are used to exchange signed documents, the 
Parties will each forward original counterpart signatures to the other promptly after delivery of 
the facsimile signatures or PDF copies, but the failure to do shall not invalidate this Amendment. 

 

[REMAINDER OF DOCUMENT INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK – 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

10/24/2013   Page 7 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
104



 

   

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE AGREEMENT 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, and the 

SPONSORS, each pursuant to due authority, have duly executed this Amendment, all as of the 
date first above written. 

 LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 By:_______________________________________   
 William B. Banning, Sr. 
 Chair of Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Diana W. Burnett 
Clerk, Lexington County Council 
 
 
      
 

RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC  
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
Peter G. Fawcett, President 
 
 
RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
Paul L. Fine, Manager 
 

10/24/2013   Page 8 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
105



 

   

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
(Description of Property) 

 
Parcel 1: 
 
 ALL THAT CERTAIN PIECE, PARCEL OR LOT OF LAND, together with 
improvements thereon, if any,  situate, lying and being in County of Lexington, State of South 
Carolina, containing approximately 13.406 acres as shown on an ALTA/ACSM Land Title 
Survey prepared for RNDC South Carolina RE Holdings, LLC by Power Engineering Company, 
Inc., dated February 17, 2010 (the "Plat"), and recorded in the Office of the Lexington County 
ROD in Book 14109, page 197, and according to said plat having the following metes and 
bounds, to-wit: 
 

Commencing at the centerline intersection of Sandhills Parkway and Foster 
Brothers Drive; thence turning and running S45°38'24"W for a distance of 65.18 
feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set on the western right-of-way of Foster 
Brothers Drive, said iron pin set being the Point of Beginning; thence turning and 
running along said western right-of-way of Foster Brothers Drive the following 
three courses:  1) S33°34'44"E for a distance of 28.11 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap 
iron pin set; 2) along a curve to the right having a radius of 30.50 feet, a length of 
47.97 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing S78°19'08"E for a distance of 
43.17 feet to a 1/2" rebar iron pin found; 3) S33°28'51"E for a distance of 571.52 
feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set at lands now or formerly of Foster 
Brothers Dixiana Sand Company; thence turning and running along lands now or 
formerly of Foster Brothers Dixiana Sand Company S79°08'51"W for a distance 
of 1,142.64 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set at lands now or formerly of 
Midway Logistics I, LLC; thence turning and running along lands now or 
formerly of Midway Logistics I, LLC, N11°17'37"W for a distance of 570.02 feet 
to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set at lands now or formerly of Foster Brothers 
Dixiana Sand Company; thence turning and running along lands now or formerly 
of Foster Brothers Dixiana Sand Company N79°08'51"E for a distance of 876.39 
feet to the place and Point of Beginning; said parcel containing 13.406 acres, all 
measurements being a little more or less. 

 
Portions of:  TMS 007997-04-001, 007997-04-002, and 005898-02-048 

 
Parcel 2: 
 
ALL THAT CERTAIN PIECE, PARCEL OR LOT OF LAND, together with improvements 
thereon, if any,  situate, lying and being in County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, 
containing approximately 11.102 acres as shown on an ALTA/ACSM Land Title Survey 
prepared for RNDC South Carolina RE Holdings, LLC by Power Engineering Company, Inc., 
dated March 29, 2010, revised April 1, 2010 (the "Plat"), and recorded in the Office of the 

10/24/2013   Page 9 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
106



 

   

Lexington County ROD in Book 14169, page 347, and according to said plat having the 
following metes and bounds, to-wit: 
 

Commencing at the centerline intersection of Sandhills Parkway and Foster 
Brothers Drive; thence turning and running S45°38'24"W for a distance of 65.18 
feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin found on the western right-of-way of Foster 
Brothers Drive, said iron pin set being the Point of Beginning; thence turning and 
running along lands now or formerly of RNDC South Carolina RE Holdings, 
LLC, S79°08’51"W for a distance of 876.39 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin 
found at lands now or formerly of Midway Logistics I, LLC; thence turning and 
running along lands now or formerly of Midway Logistics I, LLC, N11°17’37"W 
for a distance of 247.02 feet to a Mag nail iron pin set on the southern right-of-
way of Kelsey Court; thence along the eastern right of way of Kelsey Court the 
following two courses:  1) along a curve to the left having a radius of 70.00 feet, a 
length of 185.54 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing N2°44’25"E for a 
distance of 135.80 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set; 2) N11°18’41"W for a 
distance of 259.89 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin found at the southern right-
of-way of Foster Brothers Drive; thence turning and running along the southern 
right-of-way of Foster Brothers Drive the following seven courses:  1) along a 
curve to the right having a radius of 30.50 feet, a length of 47.91 feet, and being 
subtended by a chord bearing N33°41’19"E for a distance of 43.13 feet to a 5/8" 
rebar and cap iron pin set; 2) N78°41’19"E for a distance of 126.88 feet to a 5/8" 
rebar and cap iron pin set; 3) along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,219.88 
feet, a length of 360.11 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing 
N87°07’01"E for a distance of 358.81 feet to a 1/2" rebar iron pin found; 4) along 
a curve to the right having a radius of 277.00 feet, a length of 246.24 feet, and 
being subtended by a chord bearing S58°54’46"E for a distance of 238.21 feet to a 
5/8" rebar found disturbed; 5) S33°23’59"E for a distance of 404.99 feet to a 5/8" 
rebar and cap iron pin set; 6) along a curve to the right having a radius of 30.50 
feet, a length of 47.91 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing S11°40’01"W 
for a distance of 43.13 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set; 7) S33°34’44"E 
for a distance of 51.84 feet to the place and Point of Beginning; said parcel 
containing 11.102 acres, all measurements being a little more or less. 
 
Portion of TMS Nos.: 007997-04-001; 007997-04-002; and 006898-02-048 
 

10/24/2013   Page 10 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
107



 

   

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
(Initial Investment to Date) 

 
Real Estate:  $8,373,465 ($670,300 raw land and $7,703,165 improvements) 
 
Equipment:  [$4,700,000] 

10/24/2013   Page 11 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - An Ord Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to FILOT between Lex Cty...
108



 1

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON DUFFIE DRIVE TO THE LEXINGTON COUNTY 

RECREATION AND AGING COMMISSION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Lexington (hereinafter “the County”) owns certain property 

on Duffie Drive, located in the Town of Lexington; and 

 WHEREAS, the County does not have a current need for the subject property; and 

 WHEREAS, the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission has been using 

the property for many years for recreational purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to memorialize the current arrangement 

with the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission in regards to the subject property; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by Lexington County Council, as 

follows: 

1. The Lexington County Council hereby approves the lease of the property located on 

Duffie Drive, pursuant to the terms and conditions as set forth in the attached Lease Agreement.   

2. The Chairman of the Lexington County Council is hereby authorized to execute and 

deliver the Lease Agreement in the substantially final form attached hereto, subject to the 

approval of any revisions as are not materially adverse to the County by the County 

Administrator and the County Attorney. 

Enacted this ____ day of _______________________, 2013. 
 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
109



 2

 
 
 
 
             
     William B. Banning, Sr. 
     Chairman, Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________  
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk 
 
First Reading:  ___________________ 
 
Second Reading:  _________________ 
 
Third Reading:     _________________ 
 
Public Hearing:    _________________  
 
Filed W/Clerk of Court:  _____________ 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
110



10/24/2013   Page 3 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
111



10/24/2013   Page 4 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
112



10/24/2013   Page 5 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
113



10/24/2013   Page 6 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
114



10/24/2013   Page 7 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
115



1 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

ORDINANCE NO.  13-08 
 
 AUTHORIZING THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RECREATION AND AGING 

COMMISSION ON BEHALF OF THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RURAL 
RECREATION DISTRICT TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING $23,000,000; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The County Council (the “County Council”) of Lexington County, South 
Carolina (the “County”), hereby finds and determines: 
 
  (a) The Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission (the “Commission”) 
is the governing body of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District (the “District”) and has 
submitted a petition dated September 4, 2013, to the County Council requesting authorization to issue 
not exceeding $23,000,000 principal amount general obligation bonds of the District (the “Bonds”). 
 
  (b) The District was established pursuant to Act No. 1201 of the Acts and Joint 
Resolutions of the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina, Regular Session of 1968, as 
amended (the “Act”). 
 
  (c) The corporate powers and responsibilities of the District are performed by the 
Commission and as such the Commission is the governing body of the District.  The Act committed to 
the Commission the power to acquire, by gift, purchase or through the exercise of eminent domain, 
lands, or interest thereon whereon to establish physical education and recreation facilities. 
 
  (d) Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, 
as amended, provides that special purpose districts shall have the power to issue bonded indebtedness 
only for a purpose which is a public purpose and a corporate purpose in an amount not exceeding eight 
percent (8%) of the assessed value of all taxable property therein upon such terms and conditions as the 
General Assembly shall prescribe by general law. 
 
  (e) The Council constitutes the “county board” of the County and the District 
constitutes a “special purpose district,” as such quoted terms are defined in the Code. 
 
  (f) Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 11, Article 5, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 
1976, as amended (the “Code”), the county boards of all counties of the State of South Carolina 
wherein special purpose districts exist are empowered to authorize the governing body of such special 
purpose district to issue bonds of the special purpose district whose proceeds shall be used in 
furtherance of any power of the special purpose district. 
 
  (g) Pursuant to the Code the County Council is empowered to authorize the 
Commission of the District to issue bonds of the District whose proceeds shall be used in furtherance of 
any power of the District. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - An Ord Authorizing the Lex Cty Recreation and Agining Comm on Behalf of the Lex Cty Rural...
116



2 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

  (h) The assessed value of all taxable property of the District as of June 30, 2013 is 
$825,462,500.  Eight percent of such assessed value is $66,037,000.  The District’s outstanding general 
obligation debt for computation purposes under Article X, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State of 
South Carolina, 1895, as amended, is $19,200,000.  Thus, the District may incur $46,837,000 of general 
obligation debt within its applicable debt limitation. 
 
  (i) It is now in the best interest of the District for the Commission to provide for 
the issuance and sale of the Bonds of the District pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the 
Constitution and laws of the State of South Carolina in the principal amount of not exceeding 
$23,000,000, the proceeds of which will be used for improvements and enlargements to the District and 
costs of issuance of the Bonds. 
 
  (j) Prior to the enactment of this Ordinance, County Council shall hold a public 
hearing on the question of the issuance of the Bonds as required by Section 6-11-830, Code of Laws of 
South Carolina 1976 as amended. 
 
 SECTION 2.  Pursuant to the aforementioned constitutional and statutory provisions, the 
Commission, on behalf of the District, is hereby authorized to issue the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be 
dated, shall mature, shall be in such denomination, shall bear such interest, shall have such redemption 
provisions, shall be executed and shall contain such other provisions as the Commission shall 
determine. 
 
 SECTION 3.  No election shall be held as a condition to the issuance of Bonds. 
 
 SECTION 4.  For the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively 
mature, and for the creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide for the prompt 
payment thereof, the full faith, credit, taxing power and resources of the District shall be irrevocably 
pledged, and there shall be levied annually by the Auditor of Lexington County and collected by the 
Treasurer of Lexington County, in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a tax 
without limit on all taxable property of the District sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the 
Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. 
 
 SECTION 5.  The Commission is authorized to do all things necessary or convenient in 
accordance with applicable law to effect the issuance of the Bonds at such time as it deems necessary 
and in the interest of the District. 
 
 SECTION 6.  Following the enactment of this Ordinance, a Notice in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit A shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the County for three 
successive weeks. 
 
 SECTION 7.  All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in 
conflict herewith or the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the General Obligation Bonds are, to 
the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from 
and after its passage and approval. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - An Ord Authorizing the Lex Cty Recreation and Agining Comm on Behalf of the Lex Cty Rural...
117



3 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

 SECTION 8.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its enactment. 
 
 Enacted this ___ day of November, 2013. 
 
      LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA  
 
 
              
      Chair, County Council 
 
(SEAL)  
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________  
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
Approved:  
 
___________________________  
County Attorney 
 
Date of First Reading:    October 8, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Second Reading: October 29, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Public Hearing:   October 29, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Third Reading:   November 12, 2013 (Tentative) 
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - An Ord Authorizing the Lex Cty Recreation and Agining Comm on Behalf of the Lex Cty Rural...
118



A-1 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF 
NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 6-11-870, CODE OF LAWS 

OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS AMENDED, 
OF APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL 

OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
OF THE ISSUANCE OF  

NOT EXCEEDING $23,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
OF THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RURAL RECREATION DISTRICT 

 
 
 On September 4, 2013, the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission (the 
(“Commission”) on behalf of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District (the “District”) petitioned 
the County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina (the “County Council”) requesting that 
County Council (a) accept the filing of a Petition; (b) make a finding that it is in the best interest of the 
District for County Council to authorize the Commission to issue not exceeding $23,000,000 general 
obligation bonds (the “General Obligation Bonds”) (the “Bonds”), (c) order a public hearing upon the 
question of the issuance of the Bonds of the District; and (d) enact an ordinance authorizing the 
Commission on behalf of the District to issue Bonds of the District without the necessity of an election 
in the District upon the question of the issuance of such Bonds. 
 
 The County Council caused the required notice to be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in Lexington County and on __________, 2013, held a public hearing in Council Chambers, 
Lexington County Administration Building, 212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina, on the 
question of the issuance of the Bonds.  The hearing was conducted publicly and both proponents and 
opponents were given full opportunity to be heard. 
 
 The Bonds will be issued at such time as the Commission determines.  For the payment of the 
principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and for the creation of such sinking fund 
as may be necessary to provide for the prompt payment thereof, the full faith, credit, taxing power and 
resources of the District shall be irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied and collected annually 
upon all taxable property of the District a tax, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient for such 
purposes. 
 
 County Council determined that no election shall be ordered in the District upon the question of 
the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
 Any person affected by the action of the County Council may, by action de novo instituted in 
the Court of Common Pleas for Lexington County, within twenty (20) days following the last 
publication of this notice, but not afterwards, challenge the action of the County Council. 
                                                                                    
      Chairman, County Council of Lexington County, 

South Carolina 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - An Ord Authorizing the Lex Cty Recreation and Agining Comm on Behalf of the Lex Cty Rural...
119



1 
 

 

 

ORDINANCE  13-09 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT 
TO FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN RNDC 
SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC, RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC AND 
LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA WHEREBY THE COUNTY WILL COVENANT 
TO ACCEPT CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES WITH RESPECT TO 
CERTAIN PROPERTY AND MAKE AVAILABLE TO RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC AND 
RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC OTHER ECONOMIC BENEFITS AND 
INCENTIVES AND SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE ADDED TO THE JOINT PARK WITH 
CALHOUN COUNTY.   

           WHEREAS, Lexington County, South Carolina (the “County”), entered into a 
Fee in Lieu of Tax arrangement pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Act”) with RNDC South Carolina, LLC and RNDC South 
Carolina RE Holdings, LLC (collectively, the “Company”) in connection with which the County 
and the Company entered into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement dated as of 
February 23, 2010 (the “2010 Fee Agreement”) concerning the project; and, 

  WHEREAS, the Company contemplates increasing its initial promised minimum 
investment of $11,850,000, of which must consist of a real estate investment of not less than 
$7,150,000, by making an additional investment of a minimum of $17,195,000, of which, 
$5,600,000 will be in real estate and improvements and by creating fifty-four (54) new, full-time 
jobs; and, 

  WHEREAS, the Lexington County Council (“County Council”) having found 
that the additional investment and jobs will serve the County and assist the County in its 
economic development efforts and, contingent on such investment and jobs, has agreed to amend 
the 2010 Fee Agreement to extend the investment period for the project under the 2010 Fee 
Agreement by five (5) years; and, 

  WHEREAS, in order to make the additional investment, the Company has 
requested to add additional property to the Joint Park with Calhoun County; and, 

  WHEREAS, the County Council has cause to be prepared and presented to this 
meeting the form of the First Amendment to the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement 
between the County and the Company, which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and, 

  WHEREAS, it appears that the document above referred to is now before this 
meeting, is in appropriate form, and is an appropriate document to be executed and delivered by 
the County for the purposes intended; and, 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Lexington County Council in 
meeting duly assembled as follows: 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
120



2 
 

Section 1.  the County finds that the form, terms and provisions of the First 
Amendment to the Fee in Lieu of Tax Incentive Agreement which is before this meeting and 
filed with the Clerk to County Council is hereby approved and all the terms, provisions, and 
conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Amended Fee Agreement 
was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair of County Council and the Clerk to 
County Council be and they are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Amended Fee 
Agreement to the Company.  The Amended Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form 
now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall be approved 
by the officials of the County executing the Agreement, their execution thereof to constitute 
conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions thereof from the former 
amended Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 
 

Section 2.   The property set forth and attached hereto in Exhibit A is hereby added 
to the Joint Park with Calhoun County. 
 

Section 3.   The consummation of all transactions contemplated by the Amended 
Fee Agreement is hereby approved. 

 
Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 

the laws of the State of South Carolina. 
 

Section 5. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable, 
and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the Sections, phrases and provisions hereunder. 

 
Section 6.  All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof  are, to the extent of 

such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage and approval. 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
121



3 
 

 

  

 DONE, RATIFIED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ___________, 2013. 

     LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

  ________________________________________ 
 William B. Banning, Sr., 
 Chair of Lexington County Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:________________________________ 

Diana W. Burnett 
Clerk to Lexington County Council 
 

First Reading: ________________________     
Second Reading: ______________________  
Public Hearing: _______________________  
Third Reading:  _______________________  
Filed W/ Clerk of Court _________________  
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
122



 

   

FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”) is made 
and entered into as of ___________, 2013, by and between LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council (the “County Council”) as 
governing body of the County, and RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC (“RNDCSC”), a 
Delaware limited liability company, and RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC 
(“RE Holdings”), a South Carolina limited liability company (RNDCSC and RE Holdings are 
collectively, the “Sponsors”). 

 
WHEREAS, the County entered into a Fee in Lieu of Tax arrangement pursuant to Title 

12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Act”) with the 
Sponsors in connection with which the County and the Sponsors entered into a Fee in Lieu of 
Tax and Incentive Agreement dated as of February 23, 2010 (the “2010 Fee Agreement”) 
concerning the project;  

 
WHEREAS, the Sponsors contemplate increasing the initial promised minimum 

investment of $11,850,000, which must consist of a real estate investment of not less than 
$7,150,000, by making an additional investment of a minimum of $17,195,000, of which, 
$5,600,000 will be in real estate and improvements, and by creating fifty-four (54) new, full-time 
jobs; 

 
WHEREAS, in order to make the additional investment, the Sponsors desire to add 

additional property to the Joint Park with Calhoun County; 
 
WHEREAS, the County has agreed to extend the investment period for the project under 

the 2010 Fee Agreement by five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and the Sponsors desire to enter into this Amendment to amend 

the 2010 Fee Agreement as described above. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION  of the respective 

representations and agreements hereinafter contained and other value, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

 
1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein by this reference; provided, however, that such recitals shall not be deemed to modify the 
express provisions hereinafter set forth. 

2. Section 1.3.  The defined term “Investment Period” contained in Section 1.3 of 
the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that economic 
development property is purchased or acquired and ending on the last day of the tenth 
(10th) property tax year following the Commencement Date, subject to an extension for 
such period as provided in Section 3.2(b) hereof. 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
123



 

   

3. Section 3.3(f).  Section 3.3(f) of the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

In accordance with an as required by Section 12-44-40(F) of the Act, the Sponsors 
commit to the Project with a cumulative minimum investment of $29,009,000.00, which 
shall be made up of at least $12,750,000.00 in Real Estate and improvements and is 
subject to Section 5.4 of this Agreement. 

4. Section 5.4.  Section 5.4 of the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

SECTION 5.4.  Minimum Investment; Failure to Maintain Minimum Investment. 

(a)  The Sponsors shall invest a cumulative minimum investment of 
$11,850,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) in the Project by the end of the first five 
(5) years of the Investment Period and any extensions granted pursuant to Section 3.2(b) 
of this Agreement which must consist of a Real Estate investment of not less than 
$7,150,000.00 (collectively, the “Initial Investment”). 

 
 (b) In the event the Real Estate portion of the Initial Investment does 
not reach a level of $7,150,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the first five 
(5) years of the Investment Period and any extensions, then this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate with respect to the Initial Investment and each Sponsor shall pay the County an 
additional amount equal (if any) to that Sponsor's total savings from the time the first 
Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes was made to that point (that is, the difference between the fee 
amount paid by each Sponsor and the amount which would have been otherwise due in 
case of normal property taxes with all applicable exemptions).  Subject to Section 5.2(a), 
this Fee Agreement shall not terminate with respect to the Real Estate invested in the 
Project as part of the Initial Investment, so long as there is a Real Estate investment of at 
least $7,150,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the first five (5) years of the 
Investment Period and any extensions.  

 
(c) In the event the Sponsors fail to reach the cumulative minimum Initial 

Investment of $11,850,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the first five (5) 
years of the Investment Period and any extensions, or fail to maintain the cumulative 
minimum Initial Investment of $11,850,000.00 for the remainder of the term of this Fee 
Agreement, and provided that at such time the Equipment invested in the Project as part 
of the Initial Investment has not reached a level of $4,700,000.00, then this Fee 
Agreement shall terminate with respect to the Equipment invested (but not the Real 
Estate invested) in the Project as part of the Initial Investment and the 
Sponsor(s) investing the Equipment shall pay the County an additional amount equal (if 
any) to such Sponsor(s)’ total savings with regard to its/their investment in the 
Equipment for the Project from the time the first Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes was made to 
that point (that is, the difference between the fee amount paid by such Sponsor(s) and the 
amount which would have been otherwise due in case of normal property taxes with all 
applicable exemptions).  

 

10/24/2013   Page 5 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
124



 

   

(d)  In addition to the Initial Investment to be made as provided in subsections (a), 
(b) and (c) of this Section, the Sponsors shall invest a cumulative minimum investment of 
$17,195,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) in the Project by the end of the 
Investment Period and any extensions granted pursuant to Section 3.2(b) of this 
Agreement, which must consist of a Real Estate investment of not less than 
$5,600,000.00 (collectively, the “Expansion Investment”).   

 
(e)  In addition to the Initial Investment and the Expansion Investment, the 

Sponsors must also create a minimum of fifty-four (54) new, full-time jobs during the 
Investment Period such that the total number of full-time employees working for the 
Sponsors at the site located on the Real Property is three hundred forty-nine (349) (the 
“Labor Investment”). 

 
 (f) In the event that: (i) the Expansion Investment does not reach a cumulative 
minimum investment of $17,195,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) during the 
Investment Period and any extensions; or (ii) the Sponsors fail to make the required 
Labor Investment during the Investment Period, then this Fee Agreement shall terminate 
with respect to the Real Estate and Equipment invested in the Project as part of the 
Expansion Investment and the Sponsor(s) investing such Real Estate and Equipment shall 
pay the County an additional amount equal (if any) to such Sponsor(s)’ total savings with 
regard to its/their investment in the Real Estate and Equipment for the Project as part of 
the Expansion Investment from the time the first Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes was made to 
that point (that is, the difference between the fee amount paid by such Sponsor(s) and the 
amount which would have been otherwise due in case of normal property taxes with all 
applicable exemptions). 

 
(g)  In the event that: (i) the Sponsors fail to maintain the Expansion Investment 

at a cumulative minimum investment of $17,195,000.00 (without regard to depreciation) 
for the remainder of the term of this Fee Agreement after the end of the Investment 
Period and any extensions; or (ii) the Sponsors fail to maintain the required Labor 
Investment for the remainder of the term of this Fee Agreement after the end of the 
Investment Period and any extensions ((i) and (ii) are each a “Maintenance Failure”), 
then this Fee Agreement shall terminate as of the date of the Maintenance Failure with 
respect to the Real Estate and Equipment invested in the Project as part of the Expansion 
Investment.  Beginning on the date of the Maintenance Failure, the Sponsors shall pay ad 
valorem property taxes for the Real Estate and Equipment invested in the Project as part 
of the Expansion Investment; however, a Maintenance Failure shall not require the 
Sponsor(s) to pay an additional amount equal to such Sponsor(s)’ total savings with 
regard to its/their investment in the Real Estate and Equipment for the Project as part of 
the Expansion Investment. 
 
5. Exhibit A.  Exhibit A to the 2010 Fee Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety 

and replaced with Exhibit A attached to this Amendment. 

6. Initial Investment Met; Expansion and Labor Investments Prospective.  The 
County hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Sponsors have met the cumulative minimum 
Initial Investment as of the date of this Amendment.  Exhibit B attached to this Amendment 

10/24/2013   Page 6 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
125



 

   

shows the amounts that have been made to date as part of the Initial Investment.  The Sponsors 
and the County agree that none of the investments shown on Exhibit B as part of the Initial 
Investment shall count toward the Expansion Investment.  All investments made as part of the 
Expansion Investment and Labor Investment shall be made after the date of this Amendment. 

7. Multi-County Industrial and Business Park.  As provided in the 2010 Fee 
Agreement, the County has, with the appropriate consent of Lexington County Council and 
Calhoun County Council, amended an existing multi-county industrial and business park 
agreement (the “Multi-County Industrial and Business Park Agreement”) to include Parcel 1 as 
described on Exhibit A attached to this Amendment in such Multi-County Industrial and 
Business Park between the County and the County of Calhoun (the “Multi-County Park”),  
pursuant to Section 13 of Article VIII of the South Carolina Constitution and Section 4-1-170, 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.  In connection with this Amendment, the 
County has agreed, with the appropriate consent of Lexington County Council and Calhoun 
County Council, to further amend the Multi-County Industrial and Business Park Agreement to 
include Parcel 2 as shown on Exhibit A attached to this Amendment in such Multi-County Park,  
and to undertake and execute those procedures, instruments, ordinances, resolutions and 
documents as may be reasonably required to accomplish same. 

8. Notice to Department of Revenue.  The County agrees to cooperate with the 
Sponsors by filing a copy of this Amendment with the South Carolina Department of Revenue 
within thirty (30) days of the execution hereof by the County.  

9. Ratification and Confirmation.  The parties hereby ratify the 2010 Fee Agreement 
as amended by this Amendment, which represents the entire agreement of the parties. 

10. Legal Effect.  Except as modified herein, the 2010 Fee Agreement remains 
unchanged and in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions stated therein. 

11. Counterparts; Facsimile and Electronic Versions.  This document may be 
executed simultaneously or in separate counterparts, and any of the parties to this document may 
execute it by signing counterpart signature pages, all of which taken together shall constitute one 
and the same document.  Signatures transmitted by facsimile or as emailed PDF or other similar 
electronic version shall be binding as originals, and hereby waive any defenses to the 
enforcement of the terms of this document based upon the form of signature.  If facsimile 
signatures or emailed PDF or other electronic copies are used to exchange signed documents, the 
Parties will each forward original counterpart signatures to the other promptly after delivery of 
the facsimile signatures or PDF copies, but the failure to do shall not invalidate this Amendment. 

 

[REMAINDER OF DOCUMENT INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK – 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

10/24/2013   Page 7 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
126



 

   

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO FEE AGREEMENT 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, and the 

SPONSORS, each pursuant to due authority, have duly executed this Amendment, all as of the 
date first above written. 

 LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 By:_______________________________________   
 William B. Banning, Sr. 
 Chair of Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Diana W. Burnett 
Clerk, Lexington County Council 
 
 
      
 

RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA, LLC  
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
Peter G. Fawcett, President 
 
 
RNDC SOUTH CAROLINA RE HOLDINGS, LLC 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
Paul L. Fine, Manager 
 

10/24/2013   Page 8 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
127



 

   

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
(Description of Property) 

 
Parcel 1: 
 
 ALL THAT CERTAIN PIECE, PARCEL OR LOT OF LAND, together with 
improvements thereon, if any,  situate, lying and being in County of Lexington, State of South 
Carolina, containing approximately 13.406 acres as shown on an ALTA/ACSM Land Title 
Survey prepared for RNDC South Carolina RE Holdings, LLC by Power Engineering Company, 
Inc., dated February 17, 2010 (the "Plat"), and recorded in the Office of the Lexington County 
ROD in Book 14109, page 197, and according to said plat having the following metes and 
bounds, to-wit: 
 

Commencing at the centerline intersection of Sandhills Parkway and Foster 
Brothers Drive; thence turning and running S45°38'24"W for a distance of 65.18 
feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set on the western right-of-way of Foster 
Brothers Drive, said iron pin set being the Point of Beginning; thence turning and 
running along said western right-of-way of Foster Brothers Drive the following 
three courses:  1) S33°34'44"E for a distance of 28.11 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap 
iron pin set; 2) along a curve to the right having a radius of 30.50 feet, a length of 
47.97 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing S78°19'08"E for a distance of 
43.17 feet to a 1/2" rebar iron pin found; 3) S33°28'51"E for a distance of 571.52 
feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set at lands now or formerly of Foster 
Brothers Dixiana Sand Company; thence turning and running along lands now or 
formerly of Foster Brothers Dixiana Sand Company S79°08'51"W for a distance 
of 1,142.64 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set at lands now or formerly of 
Midway Logistics I, LLC; thence turning and running along lands now or 
formerly of Midway Logistics I, LLC, N11°17'37"W for a distance of 570.02 feet 
to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set at lands now or formerly of Foster Brothers 
Dixiana Sand Company; thence turning and running along lands now or formerly 
of Foster Brothers Dixiana Sand Company N79°08'51"E for a distance of 876.39 
feet to the place and Point of Beginning; said parcel containing 13.406 acres, all 
measurements being a little more or less. 

 
Portions of:  TMS 007997-04-001, 007997-04-002, and 005898-02-048 

 
Parcel 2: 
 
ALL THAT CERTAIN PIECE, PARCEL OR LOT OF LAND, together with improvements 
thereon, if any,  situate, lying and being in County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, 
containing approximately 11.102 acres as shown on an ALTA/ACSM Land Title Survey 
prepared for RNDC South Carolina RE Holdings, LLC by Power Engineering Company, Inc., 
dated March 29, 2010, revised April 1, 2010 (the "Plat"), and recorded in the Office of the 

10/24/2013   Page 9 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
128



 

   

Lexington County ROD in Book 14169, page 347, and according to said plat having the 
following metes and bounds, to-wit: 
 

Commencing at the centerline intersection of Sandhills Parkway and Foster 
Brothers Drive; thence turning and running S45°38'24"W for a distance of 65.18 
feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin found on the western right-of-way of Foster 
Brothers Drive, said iron pin set being the Point of Beginning; thence turning and 
running along lands now or formerly of RNDC South Carolina RE Holdings, 
LLC, S79°08’51"W for a distance of 876.39 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin 
found at lands now or formerly of Midway Logistics I, LLC; thence turning and 
running along lands now or formerly of Midway Logistics I, LLC, N11°17’37"W 
for a distance of 247.02 feet to a Mag nail iron pin set on the southern right-of-
way of Kelsey Court; thence along the eastern right of way of Kelsey Court the 
following two courses:  1) along a curve to the left having a radius of 70.00 feet, a 
length of 185.54 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing N2°44’25"E for a 
distance of 135.80 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set; 2) N11°18’41"W for a 
distance of 259.89 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin found at the southern right-
of-way of Foster Brothers Drive; thence turning and running along the southern 
right-of-way of Foster Brothers Drive the following seven courses:  1) along a 
curve to the right having a radius of 30.50 feet, a length of 47.91 feet, and being 
subtended by a chord bearing N33°41’19"E for a distance of 43.13 feet to a 5/8" 
rebar and cap iron pin set; 2) N78°41’19"E for a distance of 126.88 feet to a 5/8" 
rebar and cap iron pin set; 3) along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,219.88 
feet, a length of 360.11 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing 
N87°07’01"E for a distance of 358.81 feet to a 1/2" rebar iron pin found; 4) along 
a curve to the right having a radius of 277.00 feet, a length of 246.24 feet, and 
being subtended by a chord bearing S58°54’46"E for a distance of 238.21 feet to a 
5/8" rebar found disturbed; 5) S33°23’59"E for a distance of 404.99 feet to a 5/8" 
rebar and cap iron pin set; 6) along a curve to the right having a radius of 30.50 
feet, a length of 47.91 feet, and being subtended by a chord bearing S11°40’01"W 
for a distance of 43.13 feet to a 5/8" rebar and cap iron pin set; 7) S33°34’44"E 
for a distance of 51.84 feet to the place and Point of Beginning; said parcel 
containing 11.102 acres, all measurements being a little more or less. 
 
Portion of TMS Nos.: 007997-04-001; 007997-04-002; and 006898-02-048 
 

10/24/2013   Page 10 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
129



 

   

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
(Initial Investment to Date) 

 
Real Estate:  $8,373,465 ($670,300 raw land and $7,703,165 improvements) 
 
Equipment:  [$4,700,000] 

10/24/2013   Page 11 of 11County Council - Ordinance 13-09 - Ordinance Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Amendment to the FILOT Agreement...
130



 1

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON DUFFIE DRIVE TO THE LEXINGTON COUNTY 

RECREATION AND AGING COMMISSION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Lexington (hereinafter “the County”) owns certain property 

on Duffie Drive, located in the Town of Lexington; and 

 WHEREAS, the County does not have a current need for the subject property; and 

 WHEREAS, the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission has been using 

the property for many years for recreational purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to memorialize the current arrangement 

with the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission in regards to the subject property; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained and enacted by Lexington County Council, as 

follows: 

1. The Lexington County Council hereby approves the lease of the property located on 

Duffie Drive, pursuant to the terms and conditions as set forth in the attached Lease Agreement.   

2. The Chairman of the Lexington County Council is hereby authorized to execute and 

deliver the Lease Agreement in the substantially final form attached hereto, subject to the 

approval of any revisions as are not materially adverse to the County by the County 

Administrator and the County Attorney. 

Enacted this ____ day of _______________________, 2013. 
 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 
 
 
 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
131



 2

 
 
 
 
             
     William B. Banning, Sr. 
     Chairman, Lexington County Council 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________  
Diana W. Burnett, Clerk 
 
First Reading:  ___________________ 
 
Second Reading:  _________________ 
 
Third Reading:     _________________ 
 
Public Hearing:    _________________  
 
Filed W/Clerk of Court:  _____________ 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
132



10/24/2013   Page 3 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
133



10/24/2013   Page 4 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
134



10/24/2013   Page 5 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
135



10/24/2013   Page 6 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
136



10/24/2013   Page 7 of 7County Council - Ordinance 13-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of the Property Located on Duffie Drive to the Lexington...
137



1 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

ORDINANCE NO.  13-08 
 
 AUTHORIZING THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RECREATION AND AGING 

COMMISSION ON BEHALF OF THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RURAL 
RECREATION DISTRICT TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING $23,000,000; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The County Council (the “County Council”) of Lexington County, South 
Carolina (the “County”), hereby finds and determines: 
 
  (a) The Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission (the “Commission”) 
is the governing body of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District (the “District”) and has 
submitted a petition dated September 4, 2013, to the County Council requesting authorization to issue 
not exceeding $23,000,000 principal amount general obligation bonds of the District (the “Bonds”). 
 
  (b) The District was established pursuant to Act No. 1201 of the Acts and Joint 
Resolutions of the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina, Regular Session of 1968, as 
amended (the “Act”). 
 
  (c) The corporate powers and responsibilities of the District are performed by the 
Commission and as such the Commission is the governing body of the District.  The Act committed to 
the Commission the power to acquire, by gift, purchase or through the exercise of eminent domain, 
lands, or interest thereon whereon to establish physical education and recreation facilities. 
 
  (d) Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, 
as amended, provides that special purpose districts shall have the power to issue bonded indebtedness 
only for a purpose which is a public purpose and a corporate purpose in an amount not exceeding eight 
percent (8%) of the assessed value of all taxable property therein upon such terms and conditions as the 
General Assembly shall prescribe by general law. 
 
  (e) The Council constitutes the “county board” of the County and the District 
constitutes a “special purpose district,” as such quoted terms are defined in the Code. 
 
  (f) Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 11, Article 5, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 
1976, as amended (the “Code”), the county boards of all counties of the State of South Carolina 
wherein special purpose districts exist are empowered to authorize the governing body of such special 
purpose district to issue bonds of the special purpose district whose proceeds shall be used in 
furtherance of any power of the special purpose district. 
 
  (g) Pursuant to the Code the County Council is empowered to authorize the 
Commission of the District to issue bonds of the District whose proceeds shall be used in furtherance of 
any power of the District. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 1 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on Behalf of the...
138



2 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

  (h) The assessed value of all taxable property of the District as of June 30, 2013 is 
$825,462,500.  Eight percent of such assessed value is $66,037,000.  The District’s outstanding general 
obligation debt for computation purposes under Article X, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State of 
South Carolina, 1895, as amended, is $19,200,000.  Thus, the District may incur $46,837,000 of general 
obligation debt within its applicable debt limitation. 
 
  (i) It is now in the best interest of the District for the Commission to provide for 
the issuance and sale of the Bonds of the District pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the 
Constitution and laws of the State of South Carolina in the principal amount of not exceeding 
$23,000,000, the proceeds of which will be used for improvements and enlargements to the District and 
costs of issuance of the Bonds. 
 
  (j) Prior to the enactment of this Ordinance, County Council shall hold a public 
hearing on the question of the issuance of the Bonds as required by Section 6-11-830, Code of Laws of 
South Carolina 1976 as amended. 
 
 SECTION 2.  Pursuant to the aforementioned constitutional and statutory provisions, the 
Commission, on behalf of the District, is hereby authorized to issue the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be 
dated, shall mature, shall be in such denomination, shall bear such interest, shall have such redemption 
provisions, shall be executed and shall contain such other provisions as the Commission shall 
determine. 
 
 SECTION 3.  No election shall be held as a condition to the issuance of Bonds. 
 
 SECTION 4.  For the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively 
mature, and for the creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide for the prompt 
payment thereof, the full faith, credit, taxing power and resources of the District shall be irrevocably 
pledged, and there shall be levied annually by the Auditor of Lexington County and collected by the 
Treasurer of Lexington County, in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a tax 
without limit on all taxable property of the District sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the 
Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. 
 
 SECTION 5.  The Commission is authorized to do all things necessary or convenient in 
accordance with applicable law to effect the issuance of the Bonds at such time as it deems necessary 
and in the interest of the District. 
 
 SECTION 6.  Following the enactment of this Ordinance, a Notice in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit A shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the County for three 
successive weeks. 
 
 SECTION 7.  All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in 
conflict herewith or the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the General Obligation Bonds are, to 
the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from 
and after its passage and approval. 
 

10/24/2013   Page 2 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on Behalf of the...
139



3 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

 SECTION 8.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its enactment. 
 
 Enacted this ___ day of November, 2013. 
 
      LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA  
 
 
              
      Chair, County Council 
 
(SEAL)  
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________  
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
Approved:  
 
___________________________  
County Attorney 
 
Date of First Reading:    October 8, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Second Reading: October 29, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Public Hearing:   October 29, 2013 (Tentative) 
Date of Third Reading:   November 12, 2013 (Tentative) 
 

10/24/2013   Page 3 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on Behalf of the...
140



A-1 
COLUMBIA 1127085v1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF 
NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 6-11-870, CODE OF LAWS 

OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS AMENDED, 
OF APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL 

OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
OF THE ISSUANCE OF  

NOT EXCEEDING $23,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
OF THE LEXINGTON COUNTY RURAL RECREATION DISTRICT 

 
 
 On September 4, 2013, the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission (the 
(“Commission”) on behalf of the Lexington County Rural Recreation District (the “District”) petitioned 
the County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina (the “County Council”) requesting that 
County Council (a) accept the filing of a Petition; (b) make a finding that it is in the best interest of the 
District for County Council to authorize the Commission to issue not exceeding $23,000,000 general 
obligation bonds (the “General Obligation Bonds”) (the “Bonds”), (c) order a public hearing upon the 
question of the issuance of the Bonds of the District; and (d) enact an ordinance authorizing the 
Commission on behalf of the District to issue Bonds of the District without the necessity of an election 
in the District upon the question of the issuance of such Bonds. 
 
 The County Council caused the required notice to be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in Lexington County and on __________, 2013, held a public hearing in Council Chambers, 
Lexington County Administration Building, 212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina, on the 
question of the issuance of the Bonds.  The hearing was conducted publicly and both proponents and 
opponents were given full opportunity to be heard. 
 
 The Bonds will be issued at such time as the Commission determines.  For the payment of the 
principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and for the creation of such sinking fund 
as may be necessary to provide for the prompt payment thereof, the full faith, credit, taxing power and 
resources of the District shall be irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied and collected annually 
upon all taxable property of the District a tax, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient for such 
purposes. 
 
 County Council determined that no election shall be ordered in the District upon the question of 
the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
 Any person affected by the action of the County Council may, by action de novo instituted in 
the Court of Common Pleas for Lexington County, within twenty (20) days following the last 
publication of this notice, but not afterwards, challenge the action of the County Council. 
                                                                                    
      Chairman, County Council of Lexington County, 

South Carolina 

10/24/2013   Page 4 of 4County Council - Ordinance 13-08 - Authorizing the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission on Behalf of the...
141


	Agenda
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	K
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	Q
	R
	S
	T
	U
	V
	W
	X
	Y
	Z
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11

	undefined_3: 8000
	Cleanup Supply Donation Please complete GAC Supply Request Form: Off
	Beautification: On
	Litter Reduction: On
	Law Enforcement: TBD
	Elected Officials: 9
	Community Members: 260K
	Staff: ~20
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box1: Off
	Email: aedwards@lex-co.com
	undefined_2: 755-3833
	Fax: 803
	undefined: 785-3340
	Telephone: 803
	Zip: 29073
	County: Lexington
	City: Lexington
	Address: 498 Landfill Lane
	Contact Person: Amanda Edwards, Recycling Coordinator
	Organization: Lexington County Solid Waste Management
	REQUESTED FUNDSTOTAL: 
	TOTAL COSTTOTAL: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow22: 
	TOTAL COSTRow22: 
	QUANTITYRow22: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow22: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow21: 
	TOTAL COSTRow21: 
	QUANTITYRow21: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow21: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow20: 
	TOTAL COSTRow20: 
	QUANTITYRow20: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow20: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow19: 
	TOTAL COSTRow19: 
	QUANTITYRow19: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow19: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow18: 
	TOTAL COSTRow18: 
	QUANTITYRow18: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow18: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow17: 
	TOTAL COSTRow17: 
	QUANTITYRow17: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow17: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow16: 
	TOTAL COSTRow16: 
	QUANTITYRow16: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow16: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow15: 
	TOTAL COSTRow15: 
	QUANTITYRow15: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow15: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow14: 
	TOTAL COSTRow14: 
	QUANTITYRow14: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow14: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow13: 
	TOTAL COSTRow13: 
	QUANTITYRow13: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow13: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow12: 
	TOTAL COSTRow12: 
	QUANTITYRow12: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow12: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow11: 
	TOTAL COSTRow11: 
	QUANTITYRow11: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow11: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow10: 
	TOTAL COSTRow10: 
	QUANTITYRow10: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow10: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow9: 
	TOTAL COSTRow9: 
	QUANTITYRow9: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow9: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow8: 
	TOTAL COSTRow8: 
	QUANTITYRow8: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow8: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow7: 
	TOTAL COSTRow7: 
	QUANTITYRow7: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow7: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow6: 
	TOTAL COSTRow6: 
	QUANTITYRow6: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow6: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow5: 
	TOTAL COSTRow5: 
	QUANTITYRow5: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow5: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow4: 
	TOTAL COSTRow4: 
	QUANTITYRow4: 
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow4: 
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow3: 1500
	TOTAL COSTRow3: 1500
	QUANTITYRow3: 100
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow3: Custom Heavy Duty Cardboard Recycle Bins with Lids
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow2: 1500
	TOTAL COSTRow2: 1500
	QUANTITYRow2: 5
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow2: Custom galvanized & powder-coated steel "Canable" with Recycle Lids
	REQUESTED FUNDSRow1: 5000
	TOTAL COSTRow1: 5000
	QUANTITYRow1: 240
	ITEMIZED DESCRIPTIONRow1: Various indigenous and/or drought-resistant perennials and trees
	Text6: County staff is 100% responsible for the beautification projects. Our building services and Community Development departments will be responsible for the plantings.  The Sheriff's department and Solid Waste Staff will be responsible for maintaining the plants. \The litter reduction project will continue to be completed by both volunteers and employees. Volunteers at the parks and recreation facilities around the county are responsible for collecting the full bags and recycling the material.  The cardboard bins will be distributed by the County staff to other County staff members as well as residents for local events to encourage residents and staff to recycle and reduce litter.  Volunteers at these events will be responsible for recycling the material collected.  
	Text5: The beautification project involves 2 County locations, both in high traffic areas. The locations are the Sheriff's Department Training Facility and the Sandhills Collection and Recycling Center. The training center is located next to the Sheriff's Department and currently has no landscape other than grass. Planting a variety of trees and shrubs will enhance the County greatly. The Sandhills Collection and Recycling Center is located in Cayce along Charleston Highway near many corporate and industrial business offices. This busy collection center see hundreds of residents per day.  Enhancing the aesthetics of this collection center will add to the proposed traffic pattern changes and show this center as a professional department and workplace.  Both sites will have low-maintenance trees and shrubs, most of which are drought-resistant and indigenous. The recycling and litter reduction project will add to the already established initiative to promote recycling and litter reduction within the parks and recreation facilities in the County.  Previously, these facilities received over 20 recycling containers providing athletes and spectators the opportunity to recycle and properly dispose of their waste.  With the growth in Lexington County and the expansion of these facilities, we would like to increase the opportunity and help us reach the newly established 40% recycling goal set by the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control, as well as to help reduce litter by placing more containers.   We also hope to purchase more event recycling containers (cardboard) to promote and provide opportunities for recycling and litter reduction at the various events within the County, including but not limited to the Sheriff's Department events, Coats for Kids, County Employee Committee events, various Green is Clean Month events (April) and other County organized events. 
	Text4: The beautification project is a new project. While Lexington County has done landscaping in other areas, the two areas in the application have had little to no beautification initiatives. The recycling and litter reduction effort is an addition to a successful project in 2011. The permanent "canables" were placed in the County's sports recreation facilities and with growth are now in need of additional locations. The cardboard recycling bins are also an addition to this initiative for local events.
	Text8: Lexington County has a population of more than 260,000 and we believe all residents can benefit from these beautification and litter reduction projects.  Both beautification sites, as well as the parks and recreation sites see countless visitors per day. With these projects, they will be able to take pride in their community and enjoy a litter free environment. 
	Text7: Both of these projects will allow Lexington County the opportunity to improve public facilities and spaces, in turn improving the community as a whole.  These County facilities are visited by countless residents and by showing pride in our spaces, we hope to encourage them to do the same as well as giving them the opportunity to recycle and reduce litter. 


